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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Great World Company
Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The directors of the
Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE
Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) and the
management of Great World Company Holdings Ltd (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries collectively referred
to as the “Group”), | am pleased to present to you the annual
report of the Group of the year ended 31 March 2021.

The past year has been a turbulent period for the global
economy as it was affected by the protracted China-US
trade war and outbreak of COVID-19 that led to an economic
downturn. Economic growth in emerging markets and
developing countries also plunged. China’s economy was also
wrecked by the COVID-19 pandemic, with its gross domestic
product (GDP) showing a negative growth of 6.8% in the first
quarter and major economic indicators dropped sharply.

Facing this unprecedented crisis, the Group has demonstrated
resilience thanks to the remarkable efforts of our people.
Our long-term strategy and crisis planning has enabled us to
strengthen and consolidate existing business segments with
notable growth in some of our core business segments thanks
to our relentless innovation and adaptation to the evolving
market. With technological innovation in mind, the Group will
continue to explore suitable business opportunities which are
in line or may create synergy with our existing businesses,
especially in high growth industries such as consumer market
and upstream and downstream new energy vehicle (NEV)
industries.

The Group recorded a total turnover of approximately
HK$505,709,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021,
representing an increase by approximately 14.47% as
compared to approximately HK$441,778,000 of last year.
Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year was
approximately HK$22,099,000, representing a decrease
by approximately 30.37% as compared to approximately
HK$31,739,000 of last year. The Board did not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the year (2020: Nil).

Our management team will continue to focus on digital sectors
which offer the most growth potential in an economy that
is undergoing a digital transformation. More than ever, our
intelligent advertising business is critical to reach a consumer
base that is massively shifting toward online channels for
entertainment and shopping. The technological blocks that have
been built in the fields of Big Data and Artificial Intelligence (“Al”)
will be key to expand to digitizing market segments.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2020-2021
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

We believe that thanks to continuous innovations, some
industries are experiencing unprecedented growth, such as the
NEV market, smart manufacturing, industrial robots and closely
related industries. These industries will be a key focus for our
supply chain business that is constantly optimizing our product
portfolio.

Last but not least, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude
to my fellow Board members for their wise counsel and
invaluable contributions. | thank all staff of the Group for their
dedication, commitment and flexibility in tackling the challenges
in the past year, as well as our customers and business
partners for their trust and unwavering support. As we continue
to dedicate ourselves to the Group’s long-term growth, we will
also explore and seize new business opportunities to further
create value for our shareholders.

Ng Mui King, Joky
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Yanqiang, aged 39, has been an executive director
of the Company since 6 October 2014. He is the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company. He has 14 years of
experience in forestry, finance and corporate management. He
holds a bachelor’s degree and a master’s degree in engineering
from the Central South University of Forestry and Technology.

Ms. Yang Wei, aged 43, has been an executive director of the
Company since 14 June 2016. She has 20 years of experience
in clean energy, environmental protection and planning
strategies. Ms. Yang served at the Clean Energy Action Office
under the Ministry of Science and Technology of the People’s
Republic of China and the United Nations Development
Program (UNDP) in China. Currently she works as the director
of the “Biomass Energy Project Administration Office” initiated
by UNDP in China. Ms. Yang holds a bachelor’s degree in
Chinese Language from the Beijing Normal University.

Mr. Gu Zhonghai, aged 37, has been an executive director
of the Company since 9 August 2019. He holds a bachelor of
e-commerce and a master degree in business administration
from Wuhan University of Technology. Mr. Gu started off
his career in the marketing field in 2009 at China Telecom
Corporation Limited Shenzhen branch. From 2011 to 2014,
he served as operation manager and directors of VIP at
Tencent, with experience in providing services to several
companies on the list of the Fortune Global 500. He has an in-
depth insight into big data marketing, traffic cooperation and
traditional corporate digitalized transformation as well as their
implementation.

Mr. Zhao Xinyan, aged 47, has been an executive director of
the Company since 16 October 2020. He is a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. He has more than
20 years of work experience in the public transportation and
tourism industries, including more than 10 years of advertising
and marketing experience.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky, aged 59, re-designated from an
executive director to a non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 22 December 2017. She is the chairman of the
Board of the Company. She has over 28 years of experience
in telecommunication, import and export trading, accounting,
finance and corporate management.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2020-2021
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Koon Yan, aged 57, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 9 May 2008 and
is the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr.
Chung holds a Master’s degree in Professional Accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a practicing
member and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Chung is a director of Chiu, Choy & Chung CPA
Ltd. He has over 27 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and taxation. Currently, Mr. Chung is an independent non-
executive director of an independent non-executive director
of Synergy Group Holdings International Limited (stock code:
1539), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “MB”), and is also an
independent non-executive director of Winson Holdings Hong
Kong Limited (stock code: 6812), whose shares are listed on
the MB. From 12 November 2013 to 10 June 2021, Mr. Chung
was an independent non-executive director of Asian Citrus
Holdings Limited (stock code: 73), a company whose shares
are listed on the MB and were admitted to trading on AIM (a
market operated by the London Stock Exchange) in 2006 but
which has been cancelled from trading on AIM since 29 May
2017.

Ms. Zhao Yongmei, aged 53, has been an independent
non-executive director since 20 October 2014. She is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the
audit committee as well as the nomination committee. She has
over 24 years of experience in banking, finance and corporate
management.

Dr. Yang Fuyu, aged 46, has been an independent
non-executive director since 12 January 2016. He is a member
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee. Dr. Yang holds a Doctorate degree of
Agronomy in China Agricultural University. Dr. Yang is currently a
Professor and a tutor for doctoral students of China Agricultural
University, the Secretary-general of Innovative Strategic Alliance
of National Forage Industry Technology, the Secretary-general
of Innovative Strategic Alliance of Beijing Huaxia Prataculture
Industry Technology, the director of the Youth Committee
of Chinese Grassland Society and the Secretary-general of
Professional Committee of Energy Grass of Chinese Grassland
Society.
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Biographical Details of Senior Management

SREEANAERERE

Mr. Leung Hoi, aged 33, is the Head of Marketing of the
Company. Mr. Leung worked under the authority of French
Commerce Chamber and the French Embassy in Shanghai
to help French technological companies implement business
development strategies in the Chinese market. Mr. Leung has
extensive experience in technology product development,
international marketing strategies as well as international
strategic planning. Mr. Leung holds an EMBA from Beijing
University as well as a master’s degree in engineering from
Institut d’Optique Graduate School in France.

Ms. Lu Min, aged 41, is a Vice-President of the Company.
She has occupied senior management positions in multiple
state-owned enterprises and telecommunications equipment
manufacturing companies. She has more than 16 years of
experience in various fields such as telecommunications
equipment technology, supply chain management and
international trading, and has a deep understanding of online
business digitalization and cross-industries integration.

Mr. Rao Bin, aged 58, is a Vice-President of Shenzhen
Zhixunpai and General Manager of Shenzhen-Guangdong
Region. He has held senior management positions in renowned
media companies such as Southern Metropolis Daily and
Toutiao. He has more than 21 years of experience in advertising,
media promotion, especially in real estate advertising. Mr. Rao
holds a master’s degree in Chinese Language and Literature
from Huazhong Normal University.

Ms. Zhang Xiao Man, aged 32, is a Vice-President of
Shenzhen Zhixunpai and Regional Manager of Shenzhen. She
has more than 11 years of experience in real estate advertising
and has deep expertise in advertising and marketing planning
as well as brand promotion, brand strategy and advertising
creation. Ms. Zhang holds a Bachelor’'s degree in International
News Professional from Hong Kong Baptist University.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2020-2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEEmI R

MARKET REVIEW
Intelligent Advertising and Railroad Media Business
— Intelligent Advertising Business

The pandemic has caused a seismic shift in consumer
behavior and habits. It has accelerated digitalization of
the Entertainment & Media industry and paved the way
for China’s now booming e-commerce sector to cater to
an even wider demographic of users. The transition from
traditional brick-and-mortar channels to online-based
models has boosted the demand for home entertainment
and creating a strong case for retailers to adopt live
streaming, given its popularity and ability to drive sales
through integration of e-commerce and entertainment
platforms. With more Chinese consumers engaging in
social commerce, retailers must strengthen their digital and
social media capabilities. They need to evolve their digital
marketing playbook, leverage online platforms, and invest
in content and advertising to continuously improve sales

conversion and retain customers.

Mobile-first markets like China saw significant growth in
mobile ad spend at 14.6% during the period of 2019-2020.
Based on a recent Brand EQ Trends Report released
by Carat, the incline on digital ad spend will continue
as people spend more time in their own homes as the

pandemic continues into the 2020s.

Digital marketing spending is expected to grow 20% in
2021, according to the China Digital Marketing Trends
2021 report from the Miaozhen Academy of Marketing
Science (MAMS), the Global Digital Marketing Summit

(GDMS), and Media 360.

As leading e-commerce companies grew significantly
during the pandemic, reaching quasi-monopoly, promoting
fair competition and protection of consumer rights and data
privacy have become a focus of the Chinese government.
In 2021, it is expected that e-commerce giants in China
will face more stringent regulations. This may help build
a fair and balanced e-commerce environment for both

merchants and consumers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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—  Railroad Media Business

China has released its broad-brush National Transport
Planning Outline 2021-2035, which reinforces its goal to
increase the national rail network to 70,000km of high-
speed lines and 130,000km of conventional lines by 2035.
The government expects to build a modern transportation
network that facilitates domestic and international travel
and trade.

In 2021, the global economy is expected to stage a
recovery growth; China’s tourism industry is expected to
be slowly picked up even overseas travel has still been
restricted. A total of 4.1 billion domestic tourist trips will
be made in China in 2021, with a YOY growth of 42%,
according to a report released by the China Tourism
Academy.

According to the forecast of eMarketer, a market research
firm, digital ad spending will keep right on climbing in
2021, rising by 17.5% YQY to reach RMB728.74 billion
($105.58 billion). However for traditional media ad spending
contracted substantially in year 2020, and it merely
increased 1.5% on a YOY basis. In China’s fast-changing
and complex advertising market, options will multiply,
each platform offers new ways to reach and engage with
CONSUMErs.

Agricultural, Forestry and Consumer Products Business
The persistent COVID-19 still has a subtle impact on our
agricultural and forestry business. According to Financial Times,
the price of goods in China is rising at its fastest pace since the
financial crisis, while consumer price increases remain low in
China, the country’s soaring producer prices are set to increase
costs for businesses and exporters is the rising in commodity
prices. Chinese PPI has been pushed higher by commodities
and raw materials, and the rising labour costs have also pose a
significant impact on profit margins to make the agricultural and
forestry businesses worse.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2020-2021
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The pandemic initially caused a crisis in the rural and
agricultural sector, which, through e-commerce innovations
in particular quickly turned into an opportunity. With reference
to a E-commerce Trends Report published by J.P. Morgan,
a global international investment bank, it forecasts that
China’s e-commerce revenues have raced ahead of the rest
of the world. With a double-digit growth prediction to 2023,
the country represents a huge opportunity for ambitious
e-commerce merchants. China is the world’s biggest
e-commerce market, generating US$1.7 trillion in sales in 2020.
Looking ahead, smartphone uptake and the rollout of 5G mobile
bandwidths is likely to encourage faster GDP growth in Chinese
rural areas than in cities, given the fact that rural areas have
more growth potential.

Supply-chain Business

Overall, China’s economy is expected to continue on its path
to moderate recovery which will remain a popular destination
for foreign investment as long as its supply chain stays resilient.
As per BBC News analytics, China’s economy grew a record
18.3% in the first quarter of 2021 compared to the same quarter
last year. It's the biggest jump in gross domestic product (GDP)
since China started keeping quarterly records in 1992,

American and European companies are gradually reducing their
reliance on China, global supply chain continues to shift away
from China, but it remains the top sourcing location. China has
manage to overcome the pandemic much faster than the West,
and has rebounded relatively strongly. However, multinational
corporations have been starting to diversify their global supply
chains to countries other than China, which has resulted in a
collapse of a significant portion of supply chain.

At the end of 2020, an important milestone was reached when
4.92 million new energy vehicles (NEVs), including battery
electric, plug-in hybrid, and fuel cell vehicles, were operating on
China’s roads. Not only has the 5 million interim goal been met,
but the country has cultivated the world’s largest plug-in electric
vehicle (PEV) market. In 2020, nearly half of the world’s plug-
in electric vehicle production and 90% of heavy-duty electric
vehicle production was in China.
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According to PRNewswire, the uninterruptible power supply
(UPS) market has witnessed strong growth owing to the rapid
urbanization and growth in the IT market. The increasing
demand for UPS in the residential and commercial sectors will
moreover enhance the market growth. According to Verified
Market Research, the Global US$7.48 billion in 2020 and is
projected to reach US$10.46 billion by 2028, growing at a
CAGR of 4.27% from 2021 to 2028. As developing economies,
such as China, India, are facing large industrial inflation, the
demand for reliable power solutions is required to boost the
UPS market growth.

Property Business

China introduced the “Three Red Lines” policy late last year
to curb property companies’ debt ratios. Moreover, China
pledged to solve the housing problem in large cities at its top
legislative session, as monetary loosening after the pandemic
spurred a rush to real estate in the biggest hubs, pushing home
affordability there to the worst ever. In a new five-year plan
covering 2021-2025, China said the government will press
ahead with the legislation of a property tax, a policy previously
raised yet never executed. Chinese authorities have since this
year intensified their efforts to rein in the relentless rise in home
prices and drive speculators out of the market. Local policies
include capping prices set by developers and preventing some
real estate agencies from setting excessively high second-hand
home prices.

According to CBRE, a real estate and investment services
provider, it forecasts that China is likely to experience a GDP
growth of 8.2% in 2021, given that there will be a continuation
of stable monetary and fiscal policy. In 2020, the Party Central
Committee and the State Council adhered to the general
position that houses are for living in and not for speculative
investment and always stated that real estate should not be used
as a means to stimulate the economy in the short-term.

2021 will be a challenging year for China property developers as

policymakers and authorities are under pressure to crack down
on speculative demand.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Intelligent Advertising and Railroad Media Business

Intelligent Advertising Business

Shenzhen Zhixunpai Information Technology Company
Ltd. (“Shenzhen Zhixunpai”), a subsidiary of the Company,
strengthened its collaboration with a multitude of
mainstream media by growing significantly the intelligent
advertising and media services it has rendered.

In a challenging environment, Shenzhen Zhixunpai has
been able to take advantage of the increasing digitalization
of consumer markets and grow its business as a one-
stop intelligent advertising service provider. Shenzhen
Zhixunpai will continue to strengthen its technological
capabilities, develop its in-house Al advertising system to
stay on the bleeding edge of online advertising and provide
maximum value for its customers from all industries, from
consumer market brands to real estate developers. In
addition to providing high value services to its customers,
Shenzhen Zhixunpai has diversified and strengthened
partnerships with major online media providers such as
Tencent, Alibaba, as well as other Chinese media platforms
such as Tiktok, Kuaishou, Xiaohongshu. With our evolving
proprietary Big Data and Al technological platforms, it
enables us to create an Al-driven digital marketing strategy
that connects the needs of our clients’ target customers
through Al-enabled strategic and tactical omnichannel
marketing efforts. These technological platforms can
harness the data to provide an edge in its current business
segment while enabling the expansion to new verticals
such as omnichannel e-commerce services, real estate
markets or even venture into Fintech and Insuretech.

Expansions in new verticals would allow Shenzhen
Zhixunpai to provide additional growth opportunities
and broaden its income sources while playing a pivotal
role in the Group by delivering synergy opportunities via
the technological tools and the data it provides to other
business segments.
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Railroad Media Business

China Railway’s ridership was hit hard by the coronavirus
lockdown, travel restrictions and railway stations remain
a risky place of spreading virus for the commuters,
hence the number of travelers remain at a low level even
though railroad service is still the country-wide most used
transportation system in the PRC. With regard to this
persistent COVID pandemic, the Group has detailed a
series of changes to adapt to the slow down of traffic. The
Group will continue to offer railroad media services, on-
board services, food and beverage on train and inside
station, and explore opportunities to expand our product
offering. This channel remains to be of critical importance
to increase cost effectively brand exposure and reach a
high number of potential customers due to the massive
traffic.

The Group will continue to develop its technological
capabilities while leveraging its online and offline media
resources to create an Al-powered targeted marketing
platform that can provide one-stop solutions to help
customers face the post-COVID marketing challenges.
The Group will also expand organically into new business
segments by harnessing the technological capabilities that
have been developed as well as the marketing expertise
gathered across industries.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, a revenue of
approximately HK$429,517,000 was generated from
the provision of intelligent advertising and railroad media
services.
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Agricultural, Forestry and Consumer Products Business
China economy remains in recovery from the devastating impact
of the COVID-19. The outbreak of the pandemic has brought
upon unprecedented challenges, and still having a significant
negative impact on transportation, agricultural and forestry
products. Demand for our agricultural and forestry products are
decreasing due to sluggish consumer demand in an economic
downturn.

With the focus on consumer-end products to counter low
demand for agricultural and forestry products, the Group
actively explored new opportunities and new models to
fuel additional growth. The Group is currently developing
e-commerce channels in China to set up retailing channels and
expand its online presence. The Group is putting efforts to build
a digital ecosystem to facilitate connectivity and trading with
consumers. In the meanwhile, the Group will continue to explore
opportunities such as cross border e-commerce platforms in
order to expand its presence and market share in the Greater
Bay Area as well as South East Asia where there is still room for
significant growth.

The Group is developing its own lines of products in various
high demand and high growth categories such as healthy food
and snacks, well-being and self-care products that will leverage
its e-commerce channels as well as its media capabilities.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, revenue generated from
the sales of agricultural, forestry and consumer products was
approximately HK$62,755,000. The Group will gradually shift its
focus from growing agricultural and forestry products to building
its brand on various online selling platforms on a growing
portfolio of own-brand products.

Supply-chain Business

The Group provides a one-stop supply-chain solution for the
market-driven customers, providing them with the most cost
effective solutions to meet their procurement needs. The Group
offers a wide range of bespoke services and solutions including
product bundle optimization, ordering and sourcing, customs
clearance and logistics management to help the customers to
seek the finest procurable options in the market based on the
customers’ own specifications.
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The Group will maintain a high standard for supply-chain risk
management, closely observing industries of interest to seize
potential investment opportunities in order to diversify its
product portfolio further and broaden the income sources. With
the booming of New Energy Vehicles (NEV), a number of related
industries have been growing at an unprecedented pace,
especially Lithium batteries and industrial robots industries.
These industries require heavy machineries that need specific
kinds of electrical components and cabling in great quantity.
The Group is also continuing to explore mass-market product
segments, especially furniture and home accessories which
demand has been boosted by the pandemic.

Our management is looking into new investment opportunities
in key areas of the identified industries. The Group is aiming
for a breakthrough by diversifying successfully in high growth
product categories through acquisition of intellectual property
and in house development capabilities.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, a total revenue of
approximately HK$12,308,000 was generated from the supply-
chain business.

Property Business

The Group owns a property which comprises a residential and
commercial development site with a site area of approximately
3,111.96 square meters (“sg.m.”) located at Leshan City,
Sichuan Province, the PRC. The property has a gross floor
area of approximately 27,134.46 sqg.m. (inclusive of a basement
floor) and comprises 4 types of functions, namely residential,
commercial, basement car park and facilities.

The leasing of the commercial portion of the property has
commenced and the Board expects to commence the selling
programme of part of the residential portion of the property and
the leasing of certain residential portion of the property and/or
basement car park area when the property market appears to
revive with loose policy environment.

The Group is actively exploring property investment
opportunities in other regions of the PRC, leveraging the data
and experience gathered through our intelligent advertising
business focused on the Greater Bay area real estate industry
enabling targeted growth of our property business.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, revenue derived from short-

term leasing of the commercial portion of the property was
approximately HK$1,129,000.
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OUTLOOK

Although recent vaccine approvals have raised hopes of a
turnaround in the pandemic later this year, renewed waves
and new variants of the virus pose concerns for the outlook.
Amid exceptional uncertainty, the global economy is projected
to grow 5.5% in 2021 and 4.2% in 2022. In this challenging
context, the Group is committed to seeking other development
opportunities and will acquire high quality investment projects
with good potential in order to enhance its investment return
and create value for its shareholders.

The COVID has shifted the consumers habits from offline to
online and the trend continues to grow. Consumer acceptance
of digital solutions for online shopping is growing in countries
with more developed e-commerce infrastructures, including
the USA, Germany, India, Japan, Korea and China. Under
this background of total digitalization, the Group will continue
to contribute to the digital transformation of enterprises by
providing businesses with Al powered intelligent advertising
services.

Even among a negative market sentiment, there are emerging
industries that offer high growth opportunities such as industries
revolving around NEV and batteries. The Group will also keep
growing its supply chain solution business by optimizing its
product portfolio. The Group is seeking technology investment
opportunities that would enable to tap into promising market
segments and get involved directly in the manufacturing phase
upstream and the distribution and retail downstream to secure
a larger share of the profit while leveraging its digital marketing
experience and technological capabilities. A key direction would
be to develop cross border e-commerce channels to extend its
reach to overseas market, especially in the South East Asian
region.

The Group will remain conservative and prudent towards its
profitability in the coming months. Nevertheless, we have taken
measures to mitigate the impact of an economic downturn
and will formulate necessary strategies and take further actions
to enhance the long-term profitability and sustainability of the
Group.

RE
BE BT HRESEZ N T RER
BE LE B IR 4F B A 5 2 @ﬁmfa&%

MRS S RERIFHEN R =B
THEE - ERZTHANBLT @ 2K
%ﬂﬁﬁhﬁ_gz—i&_giz
DRIERS5%K4.2% © kB E S
IBERT  AEBHRASKEMEED
e WKKEEEEREIZCSERE
BIEE UIRAHEBELOREABERE
BliEEE -

EREZE ﬁ%%%?ﬂ%ﬁTL%
ERE MAEEBZNEREER
EXE - mE - HE - A %I&¢
BEETFABERRERFZENER -
HEEWR EBYBEFRRT RO
x&FE iiEm c AEEBFENER
CARERSEBERTERBATER

EDOEERERS - 9 hORB
£ -
BETISAER AN — L REY

(Blansrae RS R B EBITE)D

RUTRERKSE  AKETEEBE
LEMES  HEZRHUERERTE

X5 AEBLEESRRMREKSIA
EEFRIGEOTIS DA R ER2E L
BUERBR L THOHELTE  UHERE
REEAZHENENB A FHBRTEH

Ehp M ge n - AEBH — BRI
ARETEREREBRE  KEEALT

FREEITS - LEERERE -

AEBERENBARTRTREED
REIE - @E ALt - RIS SRS MR AR
B TBRE - I HHIE 6 B RE M
REGE—HTTBRAAEBORAAT
BEL MR FSAEE -

HAERERDAT —B_F-—B-—F&H

17



18

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEmI RN

RISK FACTORS

Market Risk

The world is facing a crisis like no other and there is substantial
uncertainty about its impact on people’s lives and livelihoods. A
rare disaster, coronavirus pandemic, has resulted in a tragically
large number of fatalities. As countries implement necessary
guarantines and social distancing practices to contain the
pandemic, the scale of the collapse in activity that has followed
is unprecedented. Global prospects remain highly uncertain
one year into the pandemic. New virus mutations and the
accumulating human toll raise concerns, even as growing
vaccine coverage lifts sentiment. According to the IMF, Global
growth is projected at 6 percent in 2021, moderating to 4.4
percent in 2022. The upward revision reflects additional fiscal
support in a few large economies, the anticipated vaccine-
powered recovery in the second half of 2021, and continued
adaptation of economic activity to subdued mobility.

Natural Risk

The ability to harvest Cistanche deserticola as well as the
growth of plants may be affected by unfavourable local weather
conditions and natural disasters. Weather conditions such
as floods, droughts, cyclones and windstorms and natural
disasters such as earthquakes, fire, disease, insect infestation
and pests are examples of such events. The occurrence of
severe weather conditions or natural disasters may diminish the
supply of plants available for harvesting, or otherwise impede
the logging operations or the growth of plants, which in turn
may have an adverse effect on the Group’s agricultural and
forestry business.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Our business is subject to China laws and regulations, including
without limitation sale of goods and services, trade descriptions,
intellectual property, product safety, food safety, data privacy,
insurance, dutiable commodities, product eco-responsibility,
telecommunications and broadcasting, competition, listing
and disclosure, and corporate governance. Whilst we manage
compliance proactively and procure to obtain first-rate
independent legal services to ensure the highest standards in
compliance, any failure to comply with laws and regulations
may result in legal proceedings being filed against us and
could expose us to civil and/or criminal liability and sanctions.
In any event, dealing with complaints, investigations, or legal
proceedings, regardless of their outcome, could be costly
and time-consuming and could divert management attention.
More importantly, the long-term sustainability of our business
is largely dependent on a steady and balanced regulatory
environment. Unanticipated changes in policies or regulatory
practices by the relevant authorities may require us to change
our business strategies and practices, and consequently,
could materially adversely affect our business. The Board paid
attention to the Group’s policies and practices on compliance
with all significant legal and regulatory requirements essential
to its business operations. The Group would seek professional
advice from its external legal advisers and consultants to ensure
that transactions and business to be performed by the Group
are in compliance with applicable environmental policies, laws
and regulations. During the reporting period, the Company has
complied in all material respects with the laws or regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group’s business and
operation.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of operations

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$505,709,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021,
representing an increase by approximately 14.47% as
compared to the turnover of approximately HK$441,778,000
for last year. The overall increase in turnover was generated
mainly from the intelligent advertising business. Administrative
and other operating expenses increased to approximately
HK$47,252,000 compared to approximately HK$35,818,000
of the previous corresponding year, representing an increase of
approximately 31.92%, mainly attributable to, among others, the
increase in staff costs of approximately HK$2,701,000 as well as
the expenditure on repairs and maintenance of approximately
HK$10,085,000 for the agricultural and forestry business. A
loss from changes in fair value less costs to sell of biological
assets of approximately HK$10,309,000 (as analysed in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements) was recognised
for the year. A provision of approximately HK$9,632,000 for
impairment loss in respect of trade and other receivables was
recognised for the year. Loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 was approximately
HK$22,099,000, which was approximately 30.37% lower than
the loss attributable to owners of the Company incurred for last
year of HK$31,739,000.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s operations and investments were financed
principally by cash generated from its business operations,
borrowings and shares issued. As at 31 March 2021, cash
and bank deposits of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$12,439,000 representing a decrease of approximately
6.36% comparing with the cash and bank deposits of
approximately HK$13,285,000 as at 31 March 2020. The
Group’s net current assets, which comprised properties held for
sale, inventories, biological assets, trade and other receivables,
cash and bank deposits, trade and other payables, contract
liabilities, lease liabilities, amount due to a shareholder, amounts
due to directors, related companies, and amounts due to non-
controlling interest, amounted to approximately HK$27,822,000
as at 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$108,211,000).

The Group’s gearing ratio, which was defined as the ratio of
long-term debt to equity, was not applicable as there is no long-
term debt as at 31 March 2021 (2020: 76%).

Capital structure
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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kkﬂiﬁﬁnﬁjrzi $ﬁ

Fund raising activity

The Company issued 473,780,000 new shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.021 per share on 11 May 2020
under a subscription agreement entered into on 27 April 2020
and generated a net proceeds of approximately HK$9.78
million as general working capital of the Group. Details of the
subscription agreement have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 April 2020.

Treasury policies

The Group adopted a conservative treasury policy to maintain
cash necessary to meet anticipated expenditures plus a
reasonable cushion for emergencies. Alimost all bank deposits
are being kept in Hong Kong dollars, or in the local currencies
of the operating subsidiaries to minimise exposure to foreign
exchange risk. Any excess cash should be invested in liquid
income-producing instruments which should be managed by
a qualified investment manager or operated in accordance
with advice provided by a qualified investment manager or
decision of an investment committee, if formed, comprising
at least one executive director, at least one independent non-
executive director and at least one individual who must possess
appropriate professional qualifications and/or financial and
investment expertise and experience.

Most of the trading transactions, assets and liabilities of the
Group were currently denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States Dollars and Renminbi. The Group did not
experience any material difficulties on its operations or liquidity
as a result of fluctuation in currency exchange rates during the
year under review. As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no
foreign exchange contracts, interest of currency swaps or other
financial derivatives for hedging purpose.

The Group is closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Capital commitments
As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no outstanding capital
commitments (2020: Nil).

Charges on assets and contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have charges on assets
(2020: Nil) and did not have any material contingent liabilities
(2020: Nil).
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Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had approximately 135
employees (2020: 109 employees). The Group reviewed
employees’ remuneration from time to time and salary
adjustment was normally made on an annual basis. Special
adjustment based on length of service and good performance
could be made at any time when warranted. In addition to
salaries, the Group provided employees’ benefits such as
medical insurance and provident fund. Share options and
bonuses were also available to employees of the Group at the
discretion of the directors and depending upon the financial
performance of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Great World Company Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) has
been committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) in order to enhance the transparency in disclosure of
material information. The Board considers such commitment
is essential for internal management, financial management
and protection of shareholders’ interest and believes that
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance benefits all
shareholders, investors and the business of the Company as a
whole. The Company has applied the principles in and complied
with the requirements of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) throughout the
year ended 31 March 2021 except for the following deviations:

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding the Directors’ transactions in
securities of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed that he/she has
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in
the adopted code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transaction throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for reviewing, evaluating and finalising
the Company’s strategies and policies, annual budgets,
business plans and performance, and has full access to
adequate, reliable and timely information on the Group so as
to enable them to make a timely decision. The Board also
has the collective responsibility for leadership and control of,
and for promoting the success of, the Group by directing and
supervising the Group’s affairs.

One of the roles of the Board is to protect and enhance
shareholders’ interests. The Board acts with integrity and due
care for the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
Leading the Group in a responsible and effective manner, the
Board adopts terms of reference which detail its functions and
responsibilities, including, but not limited to, ensuring competent
management, approving objectives, strategies and business
plans and monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of
affairs. The management is obliged to supply the Board with
adequate information in a timely manner to enable the members
to make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities. Each Director has separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to acquire more
information and to make further enquiries if necessary.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties of the Company. The duties of the Board
on corporate governance functions include developing and
reviewing the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and
senior management and reviewing the Group’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.
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The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Yangiang, Ms. Yang Wei, Mr. Gu Zhonghai and Mr.
Zhao Xinyan, one non-executive Director, namely Ms. Ng Mui
King, Joky (chairman of the Board), and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan, Ms. Zhao
Yongmei and Dr. Yang Fuyu.

Each Director has different professional and industrial
experience, which enable them to make valuable and diversified
advice and guidance to the Group’s activities and development.
Details of the background and qualifications of the Directors are
set out on pages 6 to 7 of this annual report. The Company has
received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors,
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Candidates to be nominated as directors of the Company are
experienced, high calibre individuals. Under the Articles of
Association of the Company, any Director appointed by the
Board shall hold office until the first annual general meeting after
his/her appointment and shall then be subject to re-election
by the shareholders. Apart from this, every Director is subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board held a total
of 8 board meetings, inclusive of the quarterly regular meetings
according to the CG Code. The attendance of each Director is
set out on page 29.

CHAIRMAN

Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board in 2007. The primary role of the Chairman is to provide
leadership for the Board and to ensure that the Board works
effectively in the discharge of its responsibilities.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company has not appointed a Chief Executive Officer and
the day-to-day management of the Group’s business is carried
out by the senior management and monitored by the executive
Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees in accordance with
the CG Code, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. These committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and are able to seek independent professional advice when
appropriate and upon request. Details of these committees,
including their compositions, major responsibilities and
functions, and work performed during the year ended 31 March
2020 are set out below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan (chairman
of the Audit Committee), Ms. Zhao Yongmei and Dr. Yang
Fuyu. The Audit Committee meets with the Group’s senior
management regularly to review the effectiveness of the internal
control systems and the quarterly, interim and annual reports of
the Group.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

(i)  making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and any resignation and dismissal of that
auditor;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the independence and objectivity
of the external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standard;

(iiy liaising with the Board, senior management and the
auditors to monitor the integrity of financial statements,
the quarterly, interim and annual reports in particular on
accounting policies and practices and compliance with
accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial reporting;

(iv) reviewing the financial control, internal control and risk

management system to ensure the management of the

Company discharges its duty under an effective internal

control system;

(v) reviewing the report and management letter submitted
by external auditor, and considering any findings of major
investigations of internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response; and
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(vi) considering the engagement of external independent
consultant to provide internal audit function and to carry
out internal control review, which comprises, inter alia,
enterprise risk assessment, review the internal control
system and corporate governance compliance/practice of
the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the audit committee
reviewed the financial results, the accounting policies and
practices adopted, the reports of the external independent
consultant on internal audit as well as reviewing the risk
management and internal control procedures of the Group and
four audit committee meetings were held. The attendance of
each committee member is set out on page 29.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Zhao Xinyan, and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Zhao Yongmei (chairman of
the Remuneration Committee) and Dr. Yang Fuyu. It reviews
and determines the policy for the remuneration of directors and
senior management of the Group.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are:

(i) conducting regular review of the remuneration policy of
Group’s directors and senior management;

(i) making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing such
remuneration policy;

(i) making recommendation to the Board on remuneration
packages of the Directors;

(iv) determining remuneration packages of senior management
proposed by the Directors that will attract, motivate and
retain the competent staff;

(v) reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time;
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(V)

i)

reviewing and approving compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment
or any compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of director for misconduct; and

recommending the Board of the structure of long-term
incentive plans for executive Directors and certain senior
management.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, one remuneration
committee meeting was held to review the remuneration
package of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The attendance of each committee member is set
out on page 20.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Mr. Zhang Yangiang (chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Zhao Yongmei and Dr. Yang Fuyu.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are:

(@)

reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

identifying and nominating for approval of the Board
suitably qualified candidates as additional Directors or to fill
Board vacancies as they arise;

making recommendations to the Board with respect to
the re-election by shareholders of any Director under the
relevant provisions in the Company’s articles of association;

assessing the independence of the candidates in the
case of appointment and re-appointment of independent
non-executive Directors having regard to relevant guidelines
or requirements of the GEM Listing Rules in place from
time to time; and

assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors on an annual basis having regard to relevant
guidelines or requirements of the GEM Listing Rules in
place from time to time.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, two meetings were held
by the Nomination Committee to review the composition of the
Board. The attendance of each committee member is set out
on page 29.

The Company adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Upon the review
of the Board’s composition taking into account the diversity
policy, the Nomination Committee considers that the Board has
maintained an appropriate mix and balance of age, ethnicity,
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business requirements of the Company. The
Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy to
ensure its effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.

The Company adopted a nomination policy which sets out
the selection criteria in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate as Director and procedure of appointing and re —
appointing a Director. In assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate, the Nomination Committee would consider factors
including but not limited to academic background, qualifications,
relevant experiences in the industry, character and integrity
of the candidate, whether the candidate can contribute to
the diversity of the Board and the candidate’s commitment
in respect of available time and relevant interest. Suitable
candidate can be nominated by any Director for the Nomination
Committee’s consideration. The Nomination Committee
should evaluate the personal profile of the candidate based on
the selection criteria as set out in the nomination policy and
undertake adequate due diligence in respect of each proposed
candidate. After comprehensive assessment, the Nomination
Committee will then make recommendation to the Board for
approval. The Nomination Committee will review the nomination
policy and assess its effectiveness on a regular basis or as
required.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT GENERAL
MEETING(S) AND BOARD AND COMMITTEE
MEETING(S)

The following table shows the attendance of Directors at general
meeting(s) and meeting(s) of the Board and Board Committees
during the year ended 31 March 2021:

ESHFERRAE EEEREES
2R2ER

)53

TRIRBEE-_ZE-_—F=A=
HFEEEHFERERZ - EF

EREggRBR

i

m

1

Number of meeting (s) attended/held

LEEE FT8ENE
Meeting(s) of  Meeting(s) of  Meeting(s) of
General Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting(s) Meeting(s) Committee Committee Committee
Bgg ENZES ¥MzEE REZEE
BRAE 83 83 83 EE
Executive Directors: HITEE
Mr. Zhang Yanajang RRBEE 1A 8/8 - - 2/2
Ms. Yang Wei BT 11 8/8 - - -
Mr. Gu Znonghai BREEE 11 8/8 - - -
Mr. Zhao Xinyan ik i pined - 4/4 - - -
Non-executive Director: HHITEE
Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky REBUT i 6/8 - 1 -
Independent Non-executive BV EH77EE :
Directors:
Mr. Chung Koon Yan BERLE 11 8/8 4/4 - -
Ms. Zhao Yongmei it 1 8/8 4/4 1A 2/2
Dr. Yang Fuyu FEnET i 8/8 4/4 il 2/2
DELEGATION BY THE BOARD ESgvRE

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy and
corporate development and ensuring the business operations
are properly monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide
all policy matters of the Group and material transactions. The
Board delegates the day-to-day operations to senior staff who
are responsible for different aspects of the operations of the
Group.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage
in respect of legal action against the Directors in compliance
with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.
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Training and Support for Directors

Each newly appointed Director shall receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she
has appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company. The Company will also arrange and provide
support for suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of its Directors. All Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. A form has been provided to each of the Directors to
assist them to record training information for reporting to the
Company as confirmation of training undertaken. The training
information indicate that the Directors have received training
and/or materials on corporate governance and other relevant
topics.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible to ensure the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group in
accordance with the relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards and to ensure the published
consolidated financial statements should be issued in a timely
manner and can provide a true and fair view of the business
and financial information of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the Board has adopted
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinances that are
relevant to its operations.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board
has prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors on financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021.
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The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system for the purpose of compliance
with the provision of the CG Code with an aim to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the Group’s business
objectives.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Remuneration paid and payable to the auditors of the Company
in respect of their services for the year ended 31 March 2021
are as follows:

Friz AR

Services rendered

2R

Audit services

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Internal control is fundamental to the Group’s daily operations.
Internal control is useful to Directors, senior management and
other key personnel who are accountable for control in the
Group as well as acting as a tool in providing Directors and
senior management with information of sufficient quality to make
business decisions and meet their regulatory obligations.

In this connection, Internal Control Policy and Procedures
have been formulated and implemented within the Group
with the primary objective of providing general guidance and
recommendations on a basic framework of internal control and
risk management. The key objectives of the internal control
include:

—  Safeguarding assets

—  Ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of financial
records and reports

— Promoting adherence to policies, procedures, regulations
and laws

- Promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations
The Internal Control Policy and Procedures cover, amongst

others, the following material activities — finance, operation and
compliance:
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Finance

Effective financial control is essential in identifying and managing
liabilities to ensure that the Group is not unnecessarily exposed
to avoidable financial risks as well as safeguarding of assets
from inappropriate use or loss, including the prevention and
detention of fraud and errors. A set of measures has been
formulated and implemented to tighten the control on cash
flow. All payments should be properly checked and approved.
Proper accounting and financial records shall be maintained in
supporting financial budgets, periodic management accounts
and reports.

Operation

With regard to the Group’s businesses, different sets of
principles and procedures have been set up for management
teams of different operations to follow. Through the
implementation of those principles and procedures, the
operation process became more accountable, transparent and
efficient.

Compliance

The Company has fully complied with the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules. Financial reports, announcements and
circulars have been prepared and published in accordance with
the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year, the Company engaged an external independent
consultant with professional staff in possession of relevant
expertise (the “Independent Professional Firm”) to perform
internal audit function and to carry out an internal control review,
which comprised, inter alia, enterprise risk assessment and
review of the internal control system of the Group, including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The review
plan was approved by the Audit Committee and the Board.
Based on the risk assessment and the review of the internal
control system of the Group conducted by the Independent
Professional Firm for the year, no significant risk and control
deficiency was identified. The relevant assessment and review
reports have been considered by the Audit Committee and the
Board for assessing the effectiveness of the Risk Management
and Internal Control Systems. The Audit Committee has also
reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Accounting
Function and the internal audit function performed by the
Independent Professional Firm. The Board, through the reviews
made by the Independent Professional Firm and the Audit
Committee, concluded that the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems are effective and adequate for the Group as a
whole.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to
which the Company may declare and pay dividends to the
shareholders of the Company. The recommendation of the
payment of any dividend is subject to the absolute discretion of
the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company.

Subject to compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and the articles of association of the Company, in deciding
whether to propose a dividend payout, the Board will take into
account, among other things, the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion plans,
the retained earnings, distributable reserves and liquidity
position of the Group, the general economic conditions and any
other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time and
there is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and to put forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

Any one or more Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board by mail at Room 1202, 12/F.,
Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting on a date not more than 28
days after the date on which the notice convening the meeting
is given, the requisitionist(s) him/herself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Room 1202, 12/F., Great Eagle Centre, 23
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The company secretary
of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to
the Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the relevant
executive officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders

The Company believes in regular and timely communication
with shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders
understand its business better and the way the Company
operates. To promote effective communication with the public
at large, the Company maintains a website (www.gwchl.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Company’s
major businesses, financial information and announcements,
annual, quarterly and interim reports and shareholders circulars
are being made available.

The Board is endeavour to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. The chairman of the Board and members of the
Board Committees will attend the annual general meeting to
answer questions.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”)
report for Great World Company Holdings Ltd (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “We”). This report
is designed to allow the shareholders, investors (including
potential investors) of the Company and the public to have a
more comprehensive and profound understanding of the work
done on the ESG issues of the Group for its financial year
ended 31 March 2021. This report elaborates the philosophy
and practice in respect of social responsibility and the
achievements it has made in economic, environment and social
aspects. The Group primarily adopts the principles and basis
of Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Guide”) set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) as its standards, with an
aim to establish a sound environmental, social and governance
structure. For information on the Group’s corporate governance,
please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report”.

Eﬁﬁ% /H#ﬁﬁ:

The management of the Group is responsible for monitoring
and managing ESG-related risks and the effectiveness of the
ESG management system. During the year ended 31 March
2021, the Group has complied with the “comply and explain”
provisions set out in the ESG Guide.

The board of directors of the Group believes that a sound
environmental, social and governance structure is vital for
continued sustainability and development of the Group’s
activities. Therefore, the Group understands the importance
of gender equality and diversity both in implementing the
policy and operating business. Details of the gender and age
composition, and comparative remuneration in each level of
position as at 31 March 2021 can be categorised as follows:
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BBIE -

Employment

/l:l 3F|)jl =

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of 135 employees,
recorded 24 per cent increase in its total number of employees

during the year.

During the year, there were no confirmed non-compliance incidents
or grievances in relation to human rights and labour practices
standards and regulations that would have a significant impact on

the Group.

By Gender
Female
Male

By age group
Below 30

30 to 50

Over 50

By region
Hong Kong
Mainland

By employment contract and gender
Permanent (female)

Permanent (male)

Temporary/fixed term (female)
Temporary/fixed term (male)

By employment contract and region
Permanent (Hong Kong)

Permanent (mainland china)
Temporary/fixed term (Hong Kong)
Temporary/fixed term (mainland china)

By employment type and gender
Full-time (female)

Full-time (male)

Part-time (female)

Part-time (male)

Per employee category
Senior

Middle-level
Supervisory-level

General

gl
X

==
=3

RERAR
308 A T
30Z505%
EBIB505%,

BB
BB
At

REESHRMER
RH(%)
RH(5)
EquT/)TEHH ﬁ
EHDET/;EHIq 5.%

BEREOREE
EH(EL)
REI(PEAH)
ERis, EH(EA)
ERis, EH (P B

BZ BRI MR
FR(%)
g

RESER
28

I
BEE
T

B

RZE-——F=H=+—H

- REEKRE

135%1EE @ SRFF AR B BEILEIN24% °

F AR B AT B A BE N 45 T 45 e AR I
HAEBEEAZENCERERSHN

R o
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
—E-—F —E-E
=RA=+-—H =A=+—H
67 54
68 55
57 42
67 57
11 10
17 6
118 103
61 54
59 55
6 nil 4%
9 nil
4 6
116 103
13 nil 4
2 nil 4
58 54
68 55
9 nil
nil & nil
38 34
29 17
25 16
43 42
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New Hires and Employee Turnover FEESRES %
Year ended
March 31, 2021
BE-Z-—F%
Indicators B =A=+—H
Number and rate (%) of new hires TR B AB MR (%) 47(35%)
By gender gk
Female egi 32(48%)
Male B 15(22%)
By age group RERAR
Below 30 30BRA T 31(54%)
30 to 50 305% 2505%, 15(22%)
Over 50 B3B508% 1(9%)
By region it &
Hong Kong B 3(18%)
Mainland China B A 3 44(37%)
DIVERSITY 2t
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
—E--F —T-FF
=A=+—H —A=+—H
Percentage of employees &M RINEER DL Female Male Female Male
by gender it B 2z B
Per employee category RESER
Senior == 32% 68% 29% 71%
Middle-level iz 41% 59% 47% 53%
Supervisory-level B 52% 48% 50% 50%
General =T 70% 30% 67% 33%
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
—E--£=H=+-A “T-FF¥=HA=+—H
Percentage of employees by #ZE#ARINES <30 30-50 >50 <30 30-50 >50
age group BOl 308 T 30ZE505 BiBS0RE S0 30E505 RS0
Per employee category RESER
Senior =) 10% 74% 16% 18% 70% 12%
Middle-level i 52% 48% - 53% 41% 6%
Supervisory-level 3l 52% 36% 12% 44% 31% 25%
General ET 58% 37% 5% 48% 50% 2%
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The summary of material ESG issues, which are covered in this
report, are listed below:

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
A1. Emissions

The Group is principally engaged in intelligent
advertising and railroad media business, cultivation
and sales of agricultural and forestry products
business, trading (supply chain) business and property
business and has been persistent in conducting its
business in an environmentally responsible manner
and takes measures to reduce the possible impact
on the environment arising from its production and
operating activities. We will closely monitor our
greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption
and will stay abreast of environment related regulatory
developments in the respective areas where the Group
operates.

In terms of emissions, the Group’s current business did
not generate significant emissions, but the monitoring
of emissions is still indispensable. Therefore, we will
regularly arrange for the testing of air emissions.

Air Pollutant Emissions

The pollutants listed in the standard include particulate
matter, sulfur oxides and nitrogen oxides. In addition,
the cars we operate will also generate trace amounts
of air emissions.

Types of emissions

£2 90 €7k -bicl

Nitrogen oxides
gzl k7))

Sulfur oxides
i=Rlet)
Particulates matter
BErNYE

ABEMRENBEANIRE - LB NER
EEHMBMNT

A.

RIEFE
Al. R

AEBFENZTEREESRE
BIEHEER  BEHEKEME®
HEXK B2 (HEHE) XK
EMEZXRE  —HBRHUHIR
BEREENTARLEER WK
HXTEE@VTEEEF&?‘%E/E@JT
BEHIRIBENNTE - BHFIH
Mwﬁﬂ&ﬁm/ = R B
KeelRERE - e Tﬁ¢§ﬁi$%
B LR AEBEENEERER

BormE - ARERAXBIL
BELEAHN  BERFN
EREEFZE - Fitt - Mg
TE ML PRI = B ©

ZERTRY K

Efﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁm% BIE BN Y
= m%ft%&ﬁ%ﬂ:% It
Sh o BRPVESHTEREL S
DE TR

1 April 2020 - 1 April 2019 -
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
—T-BF —TNEF
mA—BZE MA—HZ=
—B-—F —T_TF
=RA=+—H =HA=+—H
Amount (g) Amount (g)
E(%) 2(x)

978 3,673

22 84

72 270
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The main sources of the Group’s greenhouse gas
(“GHG”) emissions and removals were from Scope 1
(direct emission from the mobile combustion sources)
and Scope 2 (“energy indirect” emission from the
acquired electricity) and Scope 3 (other indirect
emissions):

1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021

BEREHK
AEEREREB(DEERE]
PR NORER A E R AR B EEN
(BEEREZEN) - $E2
(FBEE NI BEIRMEE JFF 00
K EBES(E M REE )

—E_EFNA—-—HEZE

——%=A=+-H
Emission/
Scope of Greenhouse Emission/ Removal in Intensity
Gas Emissions/Removals Removal Sources tonnes of CO, (per employee)
BERRRBR BE
BERBHNRREE BB R BRIRIR (WE =1L hx) (BEER)
Scope 1
#E1
Direct Emission Combustion of fuel in mobile 0.92 0.01 tonnes CO,
sources
B TR ERIEL RO PAGE 0.01 Wi — &b hix
GHG Deduction Removals from planted trees (4,626.76)  (34.27) tonnes CO,
B EREHR UELENETCS (34.27) Wi — &b ik
Scope 2
#E2
Indirect Emission Purchased electricity 43.73 0.32 tonnes 002
IR HE R BES 0.32 B =& 1bhix
Scope 3
#E3
Other Indirect Emission Paper waste disposed at 0.15 0.0011 tonnes CO,
landfills
Hh I BERL BEEIHERAER 0.001118 — &/ b4k
Travelling - nil tonnes CO,
Zik 0 BB =&tk
Total (4,581.96)  (33.94) tonnes CO,
et (33.94) & — &bk
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1 April 2019 - 31 March 2020 —E-hEFWA—RBE-ZE=
ZF=ZA=+—H
Emission/
Scope of Greenhouse Emission/ Removal in Intensity
Gas Emissions/Removals Removal Sources tonnes of CO, (per employee)
mm/ﬁ# BE
BEREHE R R EE BB R BR SRR (Mg =S 1L hz) (BEER)
Scope 1
&1
Direct Emission Combustion of fuel in mobile 16.89 0.15 tonnes CO,
sources
B BRI RO 0.15 Mg — &b hix
GHG Deduction Removals from planted trees (4,606.16)  (42.26) tonnes CO,
= R IR GELENETCS (42.26) M8 — &1L Hk
Scope 2
#E2
Indirect Emission Purchased electricity 33.15 0.30 tonnes CO,
3710 BEE 0.30 WA =4k i
Scope 3
#E3
Other Indirect Emission Paper waste disposed at 0.16 0.0015 tonnes CO,
landfills
Hh B HE L ZE IR A RER 0.0015 Wg — & LAk
Travelling 76.47 0.70 tonnes CO,
ZIk 0.70 Mg — &b hix
Total (4,479.49)  (41.10) tonnes CO,
et (41.10) Mg =&/ tﬁm
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Energy Saving and Emission Reduction

The indirect emission from travelling is zero during
the reporting year. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic, the inbound travellers from Hong Kong
are required to undergo compulsory quarantine at
designated places (e.g. hotel) in Mainland China for
14 days. This measure had restricted the Company’s
travelling to Mainland China to discuss business
affairs. All meetings of the Board and business
connected parties were conducted through electronic
communication channels. On the other side, the
Group is continually seeking new ways to operate in
a manner that is as environmentally considerate as
possible. The Group has therefore implemented the
following measures to minimize the use of energy:

— Increasing the application of natural light;

—  During the past year, the Company took additional
action to reduce the impact of its operation on
the environment. Energy-efficient LED light tubes
were installed in the Group office in order to
reduce energy consumption;

— Operating a high-efficiency motor unit when
replacing the machine;

— Turning off lights and unnecessary energy-
consuming devices when employees leave to
reduce energy;

— Maintaining the temperature of the air-conditioner
at a suitable level, cleaning the air-conditioner and
ventilation equipment regularly to conserve power;

— Vigorously creating “paperless” office by
encouraging the use of electronic documents,
double-sided printing and recycling paper to
reduce paper printing and consumption; and

Hazardous Waste and Non-hazardous Waste

The Group did not generate any hazardous waste
during the reporting year. Non-hazardous waste from
the Group’s operation was mainly office paper.

The total amount of non-hazardous waste generated
by the Group during the reporting year was
approximately 0.0334 tonnes, with an intensity of
approximately 0.0002 tonnes per employee.
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A2.

During the year, there was also no incident of non-
compliance with local relevant environmental laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to air and greenhouse gas, emissions,
discharge into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Use of Resources

To encourage effective utilization of resources,
the Group’s management will review and develop
management policy regarding the use of energy and
resources, which manages consumption of chemical
pesticide, fertilizer, electricity, water and office paper.

Energy Consumption

The energy used in the Group’s business operations
is mainly consumption of purchased electricity. The
Group consumed a total of 44,618 (2020: 32,516)
kWh with an intensity of 331 (2020: 293) kWh per
employee during the reporting year.

Water Consumption

For the administrative office, the Group consumes
water in the office from a centralized water and
sanitation system implemented in the building. The
cost of water consumption of the Group is inclusive
in the monthly rent, and the building management
does not individually measure the water consumption
of each tenant and hence no relevant data can be
collected. In spite of this, we strive to reduce water
consumption in daily operation by encouraging
employees to turn taps off tightly to prevent dripping
of water and giving priority to effective water-saving
products.

To enhance the efficiency of water consumption
and reduce waste water, the Group adopted a
drip irrigation system, which help to achieve water
conservation by reducing evaporation and deep
drainage. Apart from using the purchased water, we
also use rain water in the planting operation.

There is no records in consumption of water in forestry
planting during the reporting year, and no issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose. Nevertheless,
the Group reminds employees to practice water
conservation in daily operations.
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Packaging Materials

The Group’s business operations did not involve any
packaging materials during the reporting year.

Chemical pesticide and fertilizer

1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021
“E-EFMA-RAE
—E-—H=A=t1—H

Pesticide
Fertilizer
fene

1 April 2019 - 31 March 2020
—E-NFHA-RE
—E-EF=A=+-H

Pesticide
Fertilizer
fehe

The pesticide used in planting forest is to prevent
pests of diseases and the fertilizer used is to stabilize
the growth of the tree in some areas of the land which is
lack of nutrition.

The use of pesticide and fertilizer was thoughtful
considered and determined by relevant expert. It will
not bring significant effect to the environment and is in
compliance of the local regulations and law.

Environment and natural resources

The Group constantly assesses and monitors
the environmental risks in its daily operation, and
formulates corresponding mitigation measures
promptly when discovering any potential risk to
the environment, so as to ensure such risk can be
controlled and reduced to an acceptable level. The
Group is committed to making efficient use of natural
resources and reducing waste.
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To protect the natural environment of the forest, the
Group has perform the following:

Regularly inspection and evaluation

The Group conducts regular inspection on
unauthorized activities or illegal logging, fire hazard,
pest or diseases, etc.. Any issues observed would be
handled at the forest and remediation or rectification
works will be done timely.

Government involvement

The Government has standard measures and regular
engagement on the Group’s forest in terms of fire
prevention and pest control practices. The Group
cooperated with local government to perform pest
control spray and fire prevention measures.

Positive effect of our business to the environment
In Xinjiang, desertification issue made destruction to
the environment. Our business, planting forest, is an
effective way to prevent desertification and sandstorm,
and bring significant benefit to the environment.

B. SOCIAL ASPECTS
B1. Employment and Labour Practices

Employees are regarded as the greatest and valuable
assets and core competitive advantage of the Group.
The Group aims to provide employees with respectful
and fair working environment through maintaining
a sound system of human resources management
covering the various aspects such recruitment and
remuneration.

The recruitment and promotion of the Group are fair
and open for all employees, and are not affected by
age, sex, physical or mental health status, marital
status, family status, race, skin colour, nationality,
religion, political affiliation and sexual orientation and
other factors. The Group has maintained proper
systems to ensure equity and competitiveness of staff
remuneration and recognition, and it has also provided
channels of communication for employees at all levels
who are encouraged to express their opinions and give
suggestions.
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B2.

The Group offers competitive remuneration,
promotional opportunity, compensation and benefit
packages to attract and retain talents. Remuneration
packages are reviewed periodically based on the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and
market condition.

The Group strictly complies with applicable laws and
regulations in the localities of its operation, and the
relevant administrative rules and measures are strictly
enforced. These rules and regulations specify the
requirements relating to employment, labor relations,
employees’ remuneration, social insurances, housing
fund, mandatory provident fund and welfare to protect
the rights of employees.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to protecting the health
and safety of the employees and the community,
we require employees to comply with all relevant
occupational health and safety regulations, and do our
utmost to provide them with safe and healthy working
environment.

The Company strives to provide a positive and
inclusive working environment for our staff, and to
ensure that our staff members enjoy a healthy-work
life balance. To promote good health, the Company
enhanced staff medical benefits during the year under
review.

Risk management is an important part of ensuring
occupational safety. We can identify and assess
occupational health and safety risks through
identification of the source of danger, assessment of
identified risks, and appropriate risk control measures.
Precautionary measures, such as contingency offices
and “A-B Team” work arrangement, temperature
checks of staff, temporary visitation restrictions at the
workplace, were implemented to combat the risk of
COVID-19 within the Group’s office premises. Apart
from conducting additional sanitation procedures, face
masks and hand sanitiser were made available and
the Group replenished sterilising tissue paper for staff
in need. In addition, employees were encouraged to
exercise personal prudence, as well as wearing masks
and practising social distancing. To help maintain
social distancing, nearly all business meetings were
conducted through digital communication channels.
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In order to avoid accidents and ensure that all
employees work in a safe manner, we implement
established policies and guidelines for different
working conditions and needs which stipulates clearly
the safety procedures as well as emergency response
plans. Those established policies and guidelines will
be reviewed periodically and further improved to
better protect our employees. At the same time, first
aid kit is available at each workplace to ensure that
any employee who is injured or ill at work can receive
immediate attention.

The management department of the Group’s office
has also conducted a comprehensive fire drill and
emergency drill regularly. Through actual drills,
employees’ ability to escape and save themselves at
the scene of the fire was enhanced, employees’ use of
fire-extinguishing tools was improved, and everything
was done to reduce human and property losses.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, there was no
breach of relevant laws and regulations relating to
employee’s health and safety.
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B3. Development and Training

B4.

B5.

Talent development is an important part of our human
resource strategy. The Group understands that the
employees’ knowledge and skills are essential to
the Group’s operation and business growth, good
development plan lays a good foundation for the
employees to face business challenge in the future, it
also helps them to grasp promaotion opportunities, fulfill
their career aspiration.

The Group provides the employees with effective
training and develop a clear promotion ladder, ensuring
that the employees have the required skills. The Group
conducts performance evaluation annually, and based
on the assessment result to provide the staff with
appropriate training, and offer job development and
promotion opportunities for outstanding employees.

The Group encourages employees to attend
comprehensive professional training to deliver top
services to our customers. The newly hired employees
are required to attend Employee Orientation to
familiarize with the Group’s mission, vision, core value
and business goals.

Labor Standards

The Group’s employment policies in regard to
prohibiting child and forced labour are implemented to
respond to the local employment laws and regulations.
The recruitment process of the Group is strictly abided
by the guidelines of the Human Resource Department.
No child nor forced labor in the Company’s operation
during the reporting year.

Prior to confirmation of employment, the Group’s
human resources department will require job
applicants to provide a valid identity documents to
verify that the applicants are lawfully employable.

Occupational Health and Safety

During the reporting year, the Group did not receive
any prosecutions in relation to occupational health and
safety. No work-related fatalities occurred between 1
April 2019 and 31 March 2021.
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B6. Supply Chain Management B6. {IESEERE

The Group attaches importance to developing and
maintaining long-term relationships with our suppliers,
looking forward to forming long-term partnerships with
them. The Group also conducts follow-up assessment
on the suppliers, and, if necessary, reviews them
through a third-party organization.

The Group could not achieve sustainable development
without working together with its suppliers. The Group
has formulated supplier assessment systems and
conducted regular assessments of the environmental
and social performance of suppliers. These systems
guarantee the quality of raw material and equipment
used in the production of the Group and strengthens
the Group’s relationship with suppliers so as to create
a beneficial cooperation together. On-site evaluations
would be conducted regularly by the Group to
assess the performance of social responsibilities of
suppliers. For instance, if suppliers have violations
of labor regulations, including employment of child
labor, forced labor, etc., the Group would immediately
terminate the cooperation with them.

During the year, the Group was not aware that any
key suppliers had any significant actual or potential
negative impact on business ethics, environmental
protection, human rights and labour practices nor any
of them had any non-compliance incidents, in respect
of these areas.
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The Group is committed to providing customers
with high-quality products and services and settling
customer complaints effectively, continuously
improving service level and ensuring customer
satisfaction.

The Group attaches great importance to corporate
reputation to ensure good product and service
quality through internal control and avoid leakage of
personal data of customers. We have established
a sales management system to monitor the sales
process. By identifying customers’ requirements on
our products and services, we negotiate with them
on prices, quantity, quality and delivery schedule prior
to entering into sales contracts. Subsequently, we
will follow up the delivery process to ensure that our
products fulfill the terms under the sales contracts.
We will collect customers’ feedback through various
communication channels before, during and after
the delivery processes. Customers’ feedback is used
as the benchmark to evaluate our quality assurance
system and we will take rectification measures when
needed.

The Group has been in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which had a material impact on
our business operation and has not been assessed
any fines or penalties with regard to product safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
our products for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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B9.

HERE

Anti-Corruption

The Group has complied with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing (Financial Institutions) Ordinance (Chapter
615 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant
laws in regions in which the Group invests.

/l:l 3F|)jl =

All directors, management and employees of
the Group are required to abide by the Group’s
regulations. We encourage the reporting of suspected
business irregularities and provide clear channels
specifically for this purpose.

The Group is committed to adhering the highest ethical
standards. During the reporting year, these were no
concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees.

Community Investment

The Group recognizes the importance of fulfilling
corporate social responsibilities. We will continue
to seek possible ways of promoting the awareness
of community care and helping each other through
coordinating various activities which are suitable to our
identity and cater to the needs from the community,
such as donation, voluntary work, mentorship
programs.

The Group keeps track of key changes in public
policy which may have significant impact on the
Group’s sustainability development and strategies and
takes a neutral state in public matters. It did not make
donation to our political parties during the year.
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In order to enable sustainable development of the
Group, it is inseparable from the support of the
community and the people. As a responsible Group,
we continue to practice public welfare, actively
participate in various charitable and social charities,
and care for disadvantaged communities.

The Group strives to minimize potential negative social
impacts while promoting opportunities and benefits
for host communities. Our community responsibility
policies include:

—  Continually improving community development
and community investment programs through
monitoring, measuring and managing our social
and economic impacts;

—  Developing programs that ensure the sustainable
welfare of communities;

— Upholding and promoting the human rights of our
employees and contractors, our suppliers, and
the communities in which we operate;

— Recognizing and respecting indigenous
people’s culture, heritage and traditional rights
and supporting the identification, recording,
management and protection of indigenous cultural
heritage;

— Building and maintaining stakeholder relationships

with people who are directly affected or interested
in our operations; and

—  Managing the risk of public health threats amongst
employees, contractors and local communities.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The directors (the “Directors”) of Great World Company
Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) submit their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s performance, business activities and
development is included in the Chairman’s Statement on pages
4 to 5 and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
9 to 22 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss on page
71.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity on page 75 respectively.

The Company has no balance of distributable reserves available
for distribution to the owners of the Company as at 31 March
2021 (2020: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements in investment property of the Group
during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last
five financial years are summarised on page 187.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
The Company did not redeem any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased
or sold any of its shares during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association and
there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of the
Cayman lIslands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s total issued shares
as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S
PLACING OF NEW SHARES

Placing of 65,000,000 new shares on 2 July 2015

Net proceeds from the placing of 65,000,000 new shares of
the Company at the placing price of HK$0.62 per share, after
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses,
was approximately HK$39.9 million.
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Intended use of proceeds
P25 EHEE FH 2

Enhance the Group’s general working capital base
for developing the existing business and preparing
to take up investment opportunities in the future with
readily available funds.

BAAREE —R2EEER  FUEREBAE
BREABRHES AR ERBIEL M -

Subscription of 473,780,000 new shares on 11 May 2020

Net proceeds from the subscription of 473,780,000 new shares
of the Company at the subscription price of HK$0.021 per
share, after deducting the related expenses, was approximately

HK$9.78 million.

Intended use of proceeds

P18 50 IEHEE fH 2%
General working capital of the Group.

AEHz —REEES -

At the date of this annual report, the Directors do not anticipate
any change to the plan as to use of proceeds. The unused net

proceeds were placed with banks in Hong Kong.

Actual use of proceeds up to 31 March 2021
BE—E-—FZ =1 —HZHRHEABREZ

The Group used:

- approximately HK$2.2 million to pay part of the
balance of consideration for acquisition of 60%
of equity interest of Zhifeng Holdings Limited
during the year ended 31 March 2019; and

- approximately HK$37.7 million for operating
expenses of which approximately HK$0.42
million was used during the year ended 31
March 2021 (2020: HK$19.48 million).
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Actual use of proceeds up to 31 March 2021
BE—E-—F=- A= —HZHEHEABRAZ

The Group used approximately HK$9,248,000 for
operating expenses.

The remaining net proceeds of approximately

HK$532,000 has not been utilised as at 31 March
2021.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence and
has been reviewed by the remuneration committee.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
determined by the remuneration committee, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out below and in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

2012 Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a new share option scheme at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012
(the “2012 Share Option Scheme”), which is valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on 3 August 2012, upon
the termination of the share option scheme adopted at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 August 2002.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme enables the Company to
grant options to selected persons to subscribe for shares in
the Company as incentives or rewards for their contributions
or potential contributions to the Group. The Board may, at
its discretion, invite (i) any director or any employee of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity; (i)
any holder of legal or beneficial title of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any invested entity; (i) any
business or joint venture partner, contractor, subcontractor,
agent, sub-agent of the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any
person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support or any advisory, consultancy, professional
services to any member of the Group or any invested entity; and
(v) any supplier of goods or services, customer or distributor
of the Group or any invested entity, to take up options to
subscribe for the shares in the Company for a consideration of
HK$10 per each lot of share options granted.

The option period shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant of option. There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised. HK$10 is payable on
acceptance of an option within 28 days from the date of grant.
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme or the date of
approval by the shareholders in general meeting where the limit
is refreshed. The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
individual in any twelve-month period up to and including the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the
date of grant unless approval from Company’s shareholders has
been obtained. Options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non- executive director of the Company
or any of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the
total number of shares in issue or with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time during the specified
option period. The exercise price shall be determined by the
Directors, and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares. The maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue from
time to time.

Movements of the share options granted under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme are as follows:
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No. of underlying shares comprised in option
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Employees and others 4 February 2016 4 February 2016 HK$0.264 100,800,000 - - 78,400,000 - 22,400,000

(inaggregate) -6 January 2026
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yangiang

Ms. Yang Wei

Mr. Gu Zhonghai

Mr. Zhao Xinyan (appointed on 16 October 2020)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Ms. Zhao Yongmei

Dr. Yang Fuyu

Biographical details of directors
Brief biographical details of directors are set out on pages 6 to
7 of this annual report.

Rotation

Pursuant to Articles 100 and 117 of the articles of association
of the Company, Mr. Zhao Xinyan, Mr. Zhang Yangiang and Ms.
Zhao Yongmei will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Director
has entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of two years and each of the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of one year; all appointment letters are
subject to renewal with early termination clause in accordance
with the removal, retirement and re-election provisions of
articles of association of the Company.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service
contract with the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the employing company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts or arrangements subsisting which a
Director was materially interested and which was significant in
relation to the business of the Group at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2021.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
the underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which the Directors and
chief executive of the Company were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or which were naotified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and the underlying shares

BREEO B EBRROKEEROEE

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
Personal Corporate Total number share capital of
Name of Director interest interest of shares the Company
RN
ERITRA
EEpR Bz DA R4 482 ESER
Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky - 337,920,000 337,920,000 10.39%
(Note 1)
REBR L (Hii#1)
Mr. Zhao Xinyan 17,500,000 473,780,000 491,280,000 15.10%
(Note 2)
HETRE (Hiit2)
Notes: Hiat -
1. These shares are held by Gold City Assets Holdings Ltd. of 1. % 55 {7 # Gold City Assets Holdings
which Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky is the beneficial owner. I;_/\%gﬁﬁ}\ MRAEBZ LT AZARNE

2. These shares are held by Win Bless Limited of which Mr. Zhao
Xinyan is the beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests and short positions in the shares, the underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which the Directors and
chief executive of the Company were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was any of
the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or chief executives (including their spouses
or children under 18 years of age) of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has taken and maintained directors’ and officers’
liability insurance throughout the year, providing appropriate
cover for certain legal actions which may be brought against its
directors and officers.

INTEREST OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2021, save as disclosed below, so far is
known to the Directors and chief executives of the Company,
no person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) has an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which will fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
or, who is directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstance at general meetings of any member of
the Group.

Long positions in shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of

Total number of the issued

ordinary shares share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest of HK$0.01 each  of the Company

skEE ERRAT

0.01 Bz BRITRA

RREE B 513/ RRME EEREH ZBABA

Gold City Assets Holdings Ltd. Beneficial owner/Corporate 337,920,000 10.39%
Gold City Assets Holdings Ltd. BERBEA/NE (Note 1)
(Hat1)

Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky Interest in a controlled corporation 337,920,000 10.39%
REBRL R EEER (Note 1)
(Hit1)

Ms. Lin Shunping Beneficial owner/Personal 199,000,000 6.12%
MIBF 2 £ EamAAN/EA (Note 2)
(Hiz2)

Win Bless Limited Beneficial owner/Corporate 473,780,000 14.56%
EBEBRATE BEXHAAN/ A (Note 3)
(H1i23)

Mr. Zhao Xinyan Interest in a controlled corporation 473,780,000 14.56%
BT RS XEEERR (Note 3)

Beneficial owner/Personal 17,500,000 0.54%

Enfa A EA
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Notes:

1. These shares are held by Gold City Assets Holdings Ltd., a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands of which the
issued share capital is beneficially owned by Ms. Ng Mui King,
Joky, a non-executive Director of the Company.

2. These shares were issued to Ms. Lin Shunping on 27 March
2020, pursuant to the convertible notes issued by the Company
on 30 March 2015.

3. These shares are held by Win Bless Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong which is beneficially owned by Mr.
Zhao Xinyan who has been appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 16 October 2020.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the controlling shareholders of the Company (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) nor any of their respective
close associates that competes or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group or, of any other
conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have
with the Group during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 36% of the Group’s total sales for the year
and sales to the Group’s largest customer amounted to
approximately 15%.

The Group has 5 suppliers who accounted for 60% of the
Group’s total purchases for the year and purchases from the
Group’s largest supplier amounted to approximately 35% of the
Group’s total purchases for the year.

At any time during the year, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in any of the
Group’s major customers or suppliers.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events after the year are set out in note 44
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited.

The term of office of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will
expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution
for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Mui King, Joky
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Independent Auditors’ Report
AR ClE: )

M gt E R RN A
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Great World Company Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 63 to 188, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
R ClE: )

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter
Valuation of investment property
Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

At 31 March 2021, the Group has investment property with the
carrying amount of approximately HK$60,631,000.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property is determined
by adopting the valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs, assumptions of market conditions and
judgements. The Group also engaged independent qualified
professional firms of valuers to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques.

Due to the key source of estimation uncertainty and the
significant assumptions and judgements involved in the
valuation, valuation of investment property is identified as a key
audit matter.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
determination of the valuation of investment property including
but not limited to:

e evaluating the competency, capability and objectivity of the
valuers;

e  assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness
of the key assumptions based on our knowledge of the
relevant industry and using our valuation experts;

e discussing with the independent external valuer and
challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

e checking, on sampling basis, the accuracy and relevance
of the input data used.

We found that the methodologies and key assumptions used

in the valuation of investment property were supported by the
available evidence.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
AR ClE: )

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

Net realisable value of properties held for sale
Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements

At 31 March 2021, the Group has properties held for sale
located in the People’s Republic of China with the carrying
amounts of approximately HK$89,215,000.

The properties are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value on an individual property basis. Net realisable value is
estimated at the actual or estimated selling price less estimated
costs to be incurred and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sales. The determination of net realisable value
with reference to the valuation performed by the independent
qualified professional firm of valuers require management
judgement.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
determination of the valuation of properties held for sale
including but not limited to:

e conducting site visits to properties held for sale projects to
observe the development progress and evaluating whether
the development progress for each project was consistent
with the development plan;

e  evaluating the competency, capability and objectivity of the
valuers;

e assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness
of the key assumptions based on our knowledge of the
relevant industry and using our valuation experts;

e discussing with the independent external valuer and
challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

e checking, on sampling basis, the accuracy and relevance
of the input data used.

We found the carrying amounts of properties held for sale were
supported by the available evidence.
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R ClE: )

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

Valuation of biological assets

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

At 31 March 2021, the biological assets were carried at
approximately HK$35,868,000 at 31 March 2021 with a loss
arising from change in fair value less costs to sell of biological
assets for the year ended 31 March 2021 recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss of approximately
HK$10,309,000.

The biological assets were significant to the Group.
Management’s assessment of the fair value of biological assets
involved significant judgements and estimates. The most
significant assumptions and valuation parameters used in the
valuation include the estimated quantities, age and the related
market prices of biological assets applied. Independent external
valuations were obtained in order to support management’s
estimates.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill including but not limited to:

evaluating the competency, capability and objectivity of the
valuers;

e assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness
of the key assumptions based on our knowledge of the
relevant industry and using our valuation experts;

e discussing with the independent external valuer and
challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions and
valuation parameters used in the valuation based on our
knowledge of the business and industry; and

e checking, on sampling basis, the accuracy and relevance
of the input data used.

We found the methodologies used in the valuation and key

assumptions made by the management were supported by the
available evidence.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
AR ClE: )

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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R ClE: )

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
AR ClE: )

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concemn.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
R ClE: )

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Kwok Tsz Chun.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Tsz Chun
Practising Certificate Number: PO6901

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

.-l-.A == RN
:én"ﬂ? (=] Eﬁ%
For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE—T-—F=A=t—HILFE

2021 2020
—B--F —ZTCEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
Revenue Was 5 505,709 441,778
Cost of sales SHERAR (463,216) (432,797)
Gross profit EF 42,493 8,981
Other gains Hohlzs 6 1,825 46
Provision for impairment loss L WS AR 3% N EL A JE WS IR
recognised in respect of HRAREE B
trade and other receivables, net HEE (9,632) (1,438)
Loss arising from changes in fair value 4 4)& & A F{ER H SR A& 8
less costs to sell of biological assets EXZER 19 (10,309) (5,784)
Gain/(loss) arising from change in fair &M A TEREHELH
value of investment property Wz (E18) 16 2,111 (1,929)
Selling and distribution costs $HE R KR (5,565) (3,169)
Administrative and other THREMEERS
operating expenses (47,252) (35,818)
Finance costs AR 8 (1,119) (3,030)
Loss before tax BRAIER 9 (27,448) (42,141)
Income tax (expenses)/credit TSR (X)), e 10 (528) 885
Loss for the year rEEFHE (27,976) (41,256)
Loss for the year UTEERFE
attributable to: E5iE .
Owners of the Company Z/NSIE7ZE DN (22,099) (31,739
Non-controlling interests Sl g (5,877) (9,517)
(27,976) (41,256)
Loss per share BREE 13 (restated)
(&%)
Basic and diluted ERRES (6.90) (13.37)
HK cents HK cents
A AL

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these K& 3T B SR E BB HMK 2 5K 6
consolidated financial statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEmkHEMEEW SR
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-T-—F=A=t ALFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HiaF FET FET
Loss for the year REFEEIE (27,976) (41,256)
Other comprehensive AEEHME2EBA,
income/(loss) for the year (EB8)
ltems that may be reclassified HigsedmHyA
subsequently to profit or loss: BEmIEE -
— Exchange differences —MEBINEBEEZ
arising on translation of MEH ZRE
foreign operations 8,583 (7,857)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ZANEEHME2EK A
for the year (E8) 8,583 (7,857)
Total comprehensive loss AEERHEEIREE
for the year (19,393) (49,113)
Total comprehensive loss UTEA2EBEAR :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARBHEAE A (13,745) (37,9406)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R A A (5,648) (11,167)
(19,393) (49,113)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e R AR L 3R

At 31 March 2021
RZE-—F=A=+—H

Non-current assets
Right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Biological assets

Current assets

Properties held for sale

Inventories

Biological assets

Trade and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and bank deposits

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities
Amount due to a shareholder
Amounts due to directors
Amounts due to related companies
Amounts due to

non-controlling interests

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities
Amount due to a shareholder
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

FRBEE
EREEE
BEME
EYEE

RBEE

FEHEME

TE

EMEE

JRE LT R A e EL At B U R
BAFER ABE
TREE

B MRTTER

hRBRE

FE AN R AR N EL A FE AN kIR
BRAE

HERE

B — R BERFRIA
FENEEFIA

RN BB A RIFA

FEAN SRR HE 2R TRR

RBEEFE

FRBEME

B — R BERFRIA
HERE
EETIAAE

AEFE

Notes
et

14
15
16
19

17
18
19
20

21
22

23
23
26
25
25
25

25

25
26
28

2021 2020
=B —-F —ZE-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
7,558 8,840
1,528 4,218
60,631 53,931
35,623 37,344
105,340 104,333
89,215 82,165
610 23
245 1,139
158,480 156,863
330 -
12,439 13,285
261,319 253,475
(52,088) (56,561)
(35,264) (26,115)
(2,103) (1,745)
(69,414) -
(6,784) (6,576)
(58,171) (52,105)
(9,673) (2,162)
(233,497) (145,264)
27,822 108,211

- (69,414)

- (2,031)
(19,485) (17,978)
(19,485) (89,423)
113,677 123,121

HAERERATE BB -2 —FFRH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ra B AR R 3R

At 31 March 2021

R_ZE-_—F=A=1+—H

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company

Non-controlling interests

BRAS K &

[EEN

it

ROFER AR ER

FFIERER

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 June 2021 and are signed on

its behalf by:

Ng Mui King, Joky

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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2021 2020
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Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Kzt FET FET
29 32,527 27,789
42,894 51,428

75,421 79,217

38,256 43,904

113,677 123,121
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Yt T

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

At1 Apri 2019
Total comprenensive loss
forthe year

Conversion of convertiole
bonds

Forfeiture of share options
(Note 31)

Changes in ownership
interests in a subsiclary
upon deemed disposal
without loss of control
(Note 34)

Capital contribution from

non-controllng interests

Non-controling inerests
arising on acquisition of
subsicliaries (Note 33)

At 31 March 2020 and
at 1 April 2020

Total comprehensive (loss)/

income for the year

Subscription of shares
Forfeiture of share options
(Note 31)

At 31 March 2021

R-E-NERA-A
KEELABELEE

BARTARES
AR s

TRERAEEHIERR
fEREER-BHER
kR EERS
(H254)

REFERELNE

KEHBAREE I
Rigs(h33)

AR /
LN ]

B
RUGERE W31

R=B=-F2§
=t-A

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG EUN

Convertible Share Non-

Share Share notesequiy  options Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total

TeREE  ERE FER
Rx  RiEE BERE ff EXERE RiER It Bi it
HK000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKB000  HKS000  HK$000
At Tt TEr TEr TEr TEr TR TAr TEn
23689 233339 13454 1,013 (3642 (19,649) 82,108 52342 135,650
- - - - @207 (1789 (37946 (11,167) (49,113
4100 42128 (13454) - - - 3,114 - 3,114
- - - (1,151) - 1,161 - - -
- - - - - 1,681 1,681 (1,681) -
- - - - - - - 4,057 4,057
- - - - - - - (247) (247)
20,780 215467 - 10,362 (9,849 (224,552 19217 43904 123,121
- - - - 8,354 (22,099)  (13,745) (5,648  (19,399)
4738 5211 - - - - 9,949 - 9,949
- - - (8,059) - 8,059 - - -
32521 280,678 - 2,308 (1,495 (238,592) 75,421 3826 113677
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-ﬁ Iﬁﬁl)lbi’?—%

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE T —4F=A=+—HIFE
2021 2020
—B- - —E-THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
KiaE FETT FET
Cash flows from operating REXBBZHAERE
activities
Loss before tax Br i Al ET1E (27,448) (42,141)
Adjustments for: PATIER FAE -
Bank interest income RITH BUA 6 (15) (20)
Finance costs BB AR 8 1,119 3,030
Depreciation on property, Y - BB N EREITE
plant and equipment 9 2,992 2,351
Depreciation on right-of-use FREEENE
assets 9 1,896 1,513
Written down of properties WORIFE L S
held for sale 9 - 1,947
(Gain)/loss arising from change in =~ & &WE N FEEHES
fair value of investment property m(Uzs),/EiE 16 (2,111) 1,929
Loss arising from changes in EEER RN T EZER
fair value less costs to sell S A E AR EE
of biological assets 19 10,309 5,784
Provision of impairment LU AR SR N2 E b FEUR
loss recognised in respect of FORTER BRI (B &S 18 7
trade and other receivables, net B FER 6 9,632 1,438
Operating cash flows before LEECEHR
movements in working capital KEEERE (3,626) (24,169)
Increase in properties held for sale  #F{EHE W 2 1&H1 (159) (203)
Increase in inventories EETFIE N (566) (23)
(Increase)/decrease in biological EEEGEM), R
assets (4,359) 236
Increase in financial assets at fair BAFEFT ABRER
value through profit or loss T RLEEE M (330) -
Increase in trade and other JFE U B 3k R EL Ath g Ui 3k TE
receivables 0 (11,490) (52,810)
Decrease in trade and other FEAST BR SR B2 FL At FE AT 3K
payables VR (4,231) (10,437)
Increase in contract liabilities BHIAEEMN 9,149 27,017
Cash used in operations REFERHZRE (15,612) (60,389)
Tax paid [SANEE - (19)
Net cash used in operating REERFERAZRSFE
activities (15,612) (60,408)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE—"Z - —F=A=+—HItFE
2021 2020
—B- - —E-THF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Mt FETT FEIT
Cash flows from investing REXKFBRERE
activities
Interest received on bank deposits 2RI TIE R F B 15 20
Purchase of property, plant and BEYHE  BEKIEE
equipment (43) (433)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HERNBAREELEZRS
subsidiaries MAFER - 34,680
Net cash inflow arising from WENBRAREEZRS
acquisition of subsidiaries MAFEE 33 - 12
Net cash (used in)/generated REFS(FTA) FiER&
from investing activities HBEE (28) 34,279
Cash flows from financing MEXKBZRERE
activities
Proceeds from subscription of RN T8 I8
shares 9,949 -
Interest paid EFE (818) (276)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHAEaE (1,938) (1,499
Advance from/(repayment to) Bl (EET)EEQR
related companies 1,705 (239)
Advance from non-controlling TEUFEIE AR
interests 7,269 64
Advance from directors REESHENR 208 -
Advance from third parties REFE=ZFHER 7,268 20,679
Repayment to third parties % =HER (7,647) (13,219)
Net cash generated from MEXKRE
financing activities HeFE 15,996 5,510
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BEERREZEY 2N,
and cash equivalents (mA) 58 356 (20,619
Cash and cash equivalents FzRERBEEEEY
at the beginning of the year 13,285 32,405
Effect of foreign currency IERSH o TE
exchange rate changes (1,202) 1,499
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEESRESLEEY
at the end of the year 12,439 13,285
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated ~ BEMT I 5T A% F4x A BB E 2 AR 2P

AN

financial statements. J7 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/-ﬁ

BB R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE_T——
1.

F=A=+—BILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Great World Company Holdings Ltd (the “Company”)
is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands, British West Indies
and its principal place of business is room 1202, 12/F,
Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. Win Bless Limited (“Win bless”) and Gold City Assets
Holdings Ltd. (“Gold City”) are the substantial shareholders
of the Company. Win Bless is beneficially owned by Mr.
Zhao Xinyan, an executive director of the Company and
Gold City is beneficial owned by Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky, a
non-executive director of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries (together with
the Company, the “Group”) are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (“HK$’000”) except
otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on or after 1 April 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to Definition of Material
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
financial positions for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2. EREAMBHREEA(EFEM

B &R BRI A

RIE BB LR BB BRE
BT TIES

RAZE  AEBERERGLH
BREAEABAELRTHAR
((BBRHMAR ) EH 2 HES
BT SR 5 B 5 A B AE A8 2 (52T
B T BB 0 1 SR o 2 A 2 (52T
R AREER B - BEN A —
B ok 2 4 A 2 45 R MRS A 2

EERDER
FIRREBGH
R (154
)

EBET R
ERLACTIES)

EBBI R
FO% - BEGH
B F 0% 1 &b
B 75 ERIET
VACHES

BEAZER

X LZER
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RANFE &R EZ B G ER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments!

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions*

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 25

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between and Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)!

Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling
a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-20202

Disclosure of Accounting!

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
20216
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued but not yet

effective (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Going Concern Assessment

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and biological assets that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-—F=ZA=1+—HIHFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

WHESMBERRZEERTE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
where the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to
the noncontrolling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
noncontrolling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial

statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon
liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries without change of control
Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the
noncontrolling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
noncontrolling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in October 2010).
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE—T-—F=-A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognized and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable
terms of the lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE-_ZT-_—F=A=1t—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after reassessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
gain on bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Revenue from contract with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognized
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or
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BE_Z-_—F=R=1+—HILFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contract with customers (continued)

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining
goods or services promised under the contract, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contract with customers (continued)
Principal versus agent consideration

Determining whether revenue of the Group should be
reported gross or net is based on a continuing assessment
of various factors. When determining whether the Group is
acting as the principal or agent in offering goods or services
to the customer, the Group needs to first identify who
controls the specified goods or services before they are
transferred to the customer. The Group is a principal and
obtains control any of the following: (i) a good or another
asset from the other party that the Group then transfers
to the customer; (i) a right to a service to be performed by
the other party, which gives the Group the ability to direct
that party to provide the service to the customer on the
Group’s behalf; (i) a good or service from the other party
that the Group then combines with other goods or services
in providing the specified good or service to the customer.
If control is unclear, when the Group is primarily obligated
in a transaction, is subject to inventory risk, has latitude in
establishing prices and selecting suppliers, or has several
but not all of these indicators, the Group records revenues
on a gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net
amount earned as commissions from products sold or
services provided.

The Group has evaluated the roles and responsibilities of
the Group and the agents in rendering the relevant services
and concluded that the Group has the primarily obligation
in rendering the services and has the sole latitude in
establishing prices. Accordingly, the Group records the
revenue driven through agents on a gross basis, and the
commissions paid to those agents are records as sale
commission as included in selling and marketing expenses.

Sales of forestry products and information technology
products

Revenue from sales of forestry products and information
technology products is recognised at a point in time when
control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customers and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the product and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contract with customers (continued)
Provision of mobile advertising media services
Revenue from provision of mobile advertising media
services is recognised over time using output method for
which the advertisements are displayed.

WHESMBRRZEERTE
BETBRE)
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Borrowing costs BE KA

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the EEKRANOREES SR RIEZME
period in which they are incurred. R o

Employee benefits EEER

Retirement benefit obligations BRIKIEFEE

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are held
in separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000 currently. The Group’s contributions to
the scheme are expensed as incurred and vested in
accordance with the scheme’s vesting scales. Where
employees leave the scheme prior to the full vesting of
the employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable
by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s subsidiaries in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes operated by the government of the PRC is
to make the specified contributions under the schemes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-—F=ZA=1+—HIHFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

WHESMBERRZEERTE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Share-based payment expense

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straightline basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment expenses granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the goods
or the counterparty renders the service. The fair values of
the goods or services received are recognised as expenses
(unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets).

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
property that is measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such property is presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale, except for freehold
land, which is always presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale..
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date
of remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment, including bearer plant
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The principal rates used for this purpose are as follows:

10% to 25% or shorter of the
lease term
5% to 25%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles

Bearer plant

10% to 25%
20% to 33%
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Bearer plants are a living plant that is used in the production
or supply of agricultural produce and are expected to
bear produce for more than one period, and have remote
likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce, except for
incidental scrap sales. Bearer plants are accounted for in
the same way as self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment. Depreciation is provided for in respect of
bearer plants when they are in the location and condition
necessary to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, which is the point of maturity of
bearer plants. Bearer plants are measured at accumulated
cost less any impairment before maturity. When the bearer
plants are mature, they are measured at cost, less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment,
with changes recognised in profit or loss.

Bearer plant is immature until the produce can be
commercially harvested.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is measured at their
fair values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of

investment property is included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

WHESMBERRZEERTE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

The cost of properties held for sale is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs which
comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location attributable to unsold units.

Net realisable value is estimated by the management,
based on prevailing market conditions, which represents
the estimated selling price less estimated costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Biological assets

Biological assets consist of the growing produce before
harvest on trees. Trees are bearer plants and are
accounted for as property, plant and equipment (see
above).

The growing produce on trees are growing crops of the
Group on the cultivation bases. Biological assets are
measured at fair value less costs to sell on initial recognition
and at the end of each reporting period. The fair value of
biological assets is determined based on the current market
price with reference to the species, growing condition, cost
incurred and expected yield of the crops.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at fair value
less costs to sell at the time of harvest. The fair value
of agricultural produce is determined based on market
prices in the local market. The fair value less costs to sell
at the time of harvest is deemed as the cost of agricultural
produce for further processing.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Biological assets (continued)

The gain or loss arising on initial recognition of biological
assets at fair value less costs to sell and from a change
in fair value less costs to sell of biological assets shall be
included in profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Biological assets that are expected to be realised in the
next harvest within the next twelve months are classified
under current assets.

Leases

Definition of a lease

Lease is a contract contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed. As a
practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative standalone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a property
which includes both leasehold land and non-lease building
components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of equipment and office premises
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life. Straight-
line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

e fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease

liability comprise: (continued)

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Classification and measurement of leases (continued)
Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

WHESMBERRZEERTE
BETBR(E)

ERMIAME)
EHEE
EHEENTERE R E

AT S B B H 1 i
PRAEE -

s BEMAUNMAENRERENE
BRANFENEREE + &

BRBTBRIEEERELR
TREERINAEZ MHAKRE
BASBEMNENTREE °

|

e MR ERMEEERRZA
FEAAEMEE RS ([RAFE
APARMEEKE DETE

e BMANERAENRSRERK
HEMREBEARNTENE

s AMBRAANEEBRHELR
TREERINAEZ MHARE
BASBEMNENTREE °

|

FIERMEREERRZAFER
AR E - M AR ERR
HIFEESE - MBS UBREE
RIEIMEF A G FTE M 2 X556 b
Yk T R HANRE  RnHE
REMEER  AEEAEL A
BEHEEEZRARENER R
FEZF ARMEE WS

HAERERATE BB -2 —FFRH

103



104

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BB R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE_Z-_—F=R=1+—HILFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognized
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

WHESMBERRZEERTE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
“other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL”) on financial assets (including trade and
receivables (excluding prepayments) and cash and bank
deposits) which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at the end
of each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. Assessments are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the end of the reporting period as well
as the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/-ﬁ

BB R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE_Z-_—F=R=1+—HILFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognise lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators

of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly: (continued)

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; or

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over 2 years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is estimated the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE_Z-_—F=R=1+—HILFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as forward
looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when formulating
the grouping:

e Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE_E_—F=A=t—ALFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, lease
liabilities, amounts due to directors, amounts due to related
companies, amounts due to non-controlling interests and
amount due to a shareholder) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised in the respectively functional currency on
the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed arising on an acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment of tangible assets other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE-_ZT-_—F=A=1t—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible assets other than goodwill
(continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

M

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the group or an
entity related to the group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE-_ZT-_—F=A=1t—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between the Group and a related
party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE_Z-_—F=R=1+—HILFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A
contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income”.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE-_ZT-_—F=A=1t—HIFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(i) Fair value of biological assets

The biological assets are valued at fair value less costs
to sell. The fair value is determined based on either the
market-determined prices at the end of the reporting
periods adjusted with reference to the species,
age, growing condition and costs incurred to reflect
differences in characteristic and/or stages of growth
of biological assets. Any change in the estimates may
affect the fair value of biological assets significantly.
The independent external valuer and management
review the assumptions and estimates periodically
to identify any significant change in the fair value of
biological assets.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had biological
assets of approximately HK$35,868,000 (2020:
HK$38,483,000). Details of the fair value of biological
assets are disclosed in notes 19 and 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables
Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

In addition, the Group uses practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables which are not
assessed individually using a provision matrix. The
provision rates are based on aging of debtors and
their industry as groupings of various debtors taking
into consideration the Group’s historical default rates
and forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort.
At the end of each reporting period, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. Due to greater financial uncertainty
triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
increased the expected loss rates in the current year as
there is higher risk that a prolonged pandemic could
led to increased credit default rates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
are disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Net realisable value for properties held for sale
In determining whether allowances should be made for
the Group’s properties under development, the Group
considers the current market environment and the
estimated market value (i.e. the estimated selling price
less estimated costs of selling expenses) less estimated
costs to completion of the properties. An allowance
is made if the estimated market value is less than the
carrying amount. If the actual net realisable value on
properties under development is less than expected
as a result of change in market condition and/or
significant variation in the budgeted development cost,
may result in material provision for impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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HE-_T-—F=ZA=1+—HIHFE
4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. {5 FREABAEEZEFZTERFR(E)
(continued)
(iv) Fair value of investment property

(iv) REWMEZz 2V E

Investment property is stated at fair value based on
the market values, being the estimated amount for
which property could be exchanged on the date of
valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm'’s length transaction or the valuation performed
by an independent valuer. In determining the fair
value, the valuer has based on method of valuation
which involves certain estimates and assumptions.
In relying on the valuation report, the management
has exercised their judgements and is satisfied that
the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. Should there be any changes in
assumptions due to change of market conditions,
the fair value of the investment property will be
adjusted accordingly. Whilst the Group considers
valuations of the Group’s investment property are
the best estimates, the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic
has resulted in greater market volatility depending on
how the Covid-19 may progress and evolve, which
have led to higher degree of uncertainties in respect
of the valuations in the current year. Changes to
these assumptions would result in changes in the fair
values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of the
Group’s investment property is HK$60,631,000 (2020:
HK$53,931,000). The determination of the fair value
involves certain assumptions of market conditions
which are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

5. REVENUE Yz
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WaEoamE
2021 2020
—B- - —ET-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Provision of mobile advertising media 25 )& & L2 AR TS
services 429,517 294,140
Sales of goods HESEMm 75,063 146,721
Revenue from contracts with REEFEHHNKRE
customers 504,580 440,861
Rental income e A 1,129 917
505,709 441,778
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REEFEANKRDF
customers
2021 2020
- —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Provision of mobile advertising media IRt &h & & 1 a2
services 429,517 294,140
Sales of goods HEEm
— forestry products —MEEm 62,755 71,594
- information technology products —EHREES 12,308 75,127
504,580 440,861
Timing of revenue recognition U 225 7 5 B
Over time e 2 B ] 429,517 294,140
At a point in time AR 24 75,063 146,721
504,580 440,861
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its revenue such that the Group does
not disclose information about revenue that the Group will
be entitled to when it satisfied the remaining obligations
under the contracts as all contract works have an original

expected duration of one year or less.

6. OTHER GAINS

Government grant (note (i)
Bank interest income
Other income (note (i)

note:

()  During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recognised
government grants of approximately HK$285,000 in respect
of Covid-19-related subsidies which relates to Employment
Support Scheme provided by Hong Kong government.

(i)  Other income mainly represents one-off respirator masks
trading income of approximately HK$1,525,000 which
is related to trading revenue of HK$5,226,000 deducted

related expense of HK$3,701,000.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geographical area. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to
the Group’s most senior management for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following four reportable
segments.

The Group’s operations and reportable segments are as
follows:

Intelligent advertising and
railroad media business

Provides mobile advertising
media services for intelligent
advertising and property
market customers in the
PRC. Provision of railroad
magazine distribution and
e-commerce platform
management, advertising
and product sales

Cultivation and sales of
agricultural and forestry
products business

Cultivation of forestry
and wood material
products, cultivation of
Chinese herbal medicine
ingredients and specialty
agricultural by products,
sales of processed and
prepackaged food

Sales of information
technology products
and industrial consumer
products as well as
related R&D and product
manufacturing activities

Trading (supply chain)
business

Property business Property investment and
development, operating and
managing residential and

commercial properties
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE_T

7.

——F=A=f—HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately, for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and assessment of the Group’s
performance. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of adjusted
loss before tax. The adjusted loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s loss before tax except that
gain on bargain purchase, unallocated finance costs,
unallocated selling and distribution costs and unallocated
administrative and other operating expenses are excluded
from such measurement.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
goodwill and unallocated corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, and unallocated
corporate liabilities.

These segments are managed separately as they belong to
different industries and require different operating systems
and strategies. There were no sales or other transactions
between those reportable segments. Information regarding
the Group’s reportable segments is presented below:
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EERES E‘ﬂﬁﬁ AEBEZKEDEWZ

B UMBERIERAEERR
DERIB TR 2
Eﬁﬂ“uﬂ%ﬁf
2 wD @Errﬂ,éfﬁmi ﬂi’ﬁ@E
HERDHEKARRDBEITHREE
fth A4S & B S I B A X ERTE SN
A o8 BE R T R A5 18 B AN £ B PR R Al

SRR -
o B2 FEEFE
%RH BB ZFTERE -

BRZAEIA 2

GEBERADECXEEIN  IE

BESEKEAZ2HMOEL
%fﬁﬁﬁ B EERBEENRK

PTREXBEN FBERESEE
A 2HmNEL o

WEDEABITENR - AHLE

) E K 2R Hﬂ?TTH WORAEIR -
WERERN B MW EEITHE
s E AR % REB2H/OIAE
BEST
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DHERGE)
(@) Segment revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities (a) 7= B - BEE - AfF
and other selected financial information REAMREMEER
2021 —EB-—-F
Intelligent  Cultivation
advertising and sales of Trading
and railroad  agricultural (Supply
media and forestry Chain) Property
business products Business business Total
BRES BER g7
K i3k ENER (fitpEsE)
REER HEEK £% MEEHK @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FE7 FE7 FEx FE7 FEx
Revenue from external KENPEP Z e
customers 429,517 62,755 12,308 1,129 505,709
Total income/(loss) of BEE: Gl
reportable segments WA/ (E18) @ 16,741 (40,890) (457) 2,411 (22,195)
Total assets of reportable ERHHEERE
segments 111,009 97,955 5,668 150,380 365,012
Total liabilities of reportable AT 2R B ELE
segments (82,039) (5,467) (5,253) (79,729) (172,488)
Amounts included in the SENBEEI DT
measure of segment proft ~ BEBENEE -
or loss or segment assets:
Bank interest income RATHEHA 12 2 - 1 15
Depreciation of property, v ER Y G
plant and equipment ik (18) (2,826) - 2 (2,846)
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FREEERE
assets (771) 82 - - (853)
Loss arising from changesin 4+ ¥ B EHATE
fair value less costs to sel ERRLERA
of biological assets FEE’JEEE - (10,309) - - (10,309)
Gain on fair value change on ¥ EME AT EEH
investment property EEmka - - - 2,111 2,111
Provision for impairment loss  Ft YRR 7 I B At
recognised in respect of W Z IEﬁEn Ry
trade and other receivables, B/ 1B -
net R (6,839) (2,772) (21) - (9,632)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7.

(@) Segment revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities
and other selected financial information (continued)

D RPER ()
(a) 28%E - BE - EE - AE
REMBREMBER(BE)

2020 —ZF-F
Intelligent ~ Cultivation
advertising  and sales of Trading
andrailroad  agricultural (Supply
media  and forestry Chain) Property
business products Business business Total
BHES BER =0
RE% BMER (ftResd)
et 3 HEEK 5% EES @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET FET
Revenue from external KENPEP s
customers 294,140 71,594 75,127 917 441,778
Total loss of reportable BEX i)
segments BREE (7,009) (16,904) (2,244) (3,107) (29,354)
Total assets of reportable ERHHEERA
segments 76,363 131,571 3,056 136,315 347,305
Total liabilties of reportable A/ 2D & B
segments (70,865) (8,400) (2,101) (73,430) (154,802)
Amounts included in the HEHSBEESAD
measure of segment profit ~ BEBENEE
or loss or segment assets:
Bank interest income RITHEHA 7 - 1 1 9
Depreciation of property, W% - BERRE
plant and equipment nE (74) (2,221) - @) (2,298)
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FREEERTE
assets (514) - - - (514)
Loss arising from changesin -~ ¥ 8 & AT{E
fair value less costs to sell BRI ENAE
of biological assets KRR - (5,784) - - (5,784)
Loss on fair value change on X EME L FEE
investment property EENER - - - (1,929) (1,929)
Written down of properties ~ #iF S {EH &
held for sale - - - (1,947 (1,947)
Provision for impairment loss i ERER 70l B At
recognised in respect of FEU R IERRRA)
trade and other receivables,  Fi{EEIBRE -
net e - 31 (1,407) - (1,438)
Addition of non-current assets KB JEREIAE 3,351 - - - 3,351

Note: Additions of non-current assets consist of right-of-use

assets and property, plant and equipment.

Kt - ARERNFRBEERBER

REENE - BB Kt -

HAERERDAT —B_F-—B-—F&H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-—F=ZA=1+—HILHFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Revenue
Total revenue for reportable
segments

Consolidated revenue

Profit or loss

Total loss for reportable segments

Unallocated corporate income

Unallocated corporate expenses

Consolidated loss before tax

Assets
Total assets for reportable
segments
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets
Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable

segments
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities
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DEE R (E)
(b) TIEHoHBKE - BFE - EE
FEEzEHR

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECEE
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

505,709 441,778

505,709 441,778
(22,195) (29,354)

1,578 11
(6,831) (12,798)
(27,448) (42,141)

365,012 347,305

1,647 10,503

366,659 357,808

(172,488) (154,802)

(80,494) (79,885)

(252,982) (234,687)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-—F=ZA=1+—HIHFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. ZEER(E)
(c) Geographical Information (c) HEEHR
The following table sets out information about the TREIATEBAEERE
geographical location of the Group’s revenue from INFEFP 2N EHIBENEZE
external customers. The geographical location of B BB 7T JHiRIE FTiR
customer is based on the location at which the HIRESREMZN 2 FrEM M
services were provided or the goods were delivered. E °
2021 2020
=B —-F —ZE-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAETT FET
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong PE(TRIESRH) 505,709 371,724
Hong Kong B - 70,054
505,709 441,778
Since over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets BAARNEEBIBI%HIERE
were located in the PRC, no geographical segment BEMRPE - W EZTF
information in accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating BB R EERFIFAFE
Segments is presented. S EFEHDIE 5 BRE K} o

HARZERERAT —2=2-—F-—FFK 129
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(d) Information about major customers

Revenue from customers for the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020 contributing over 10% of the

B

7. ZEHERGE)
d) FEEERFZEH

EE - FR-ZE-_FTF

ZRA=t—HLEFEHEAEKHE

total revenue of the Group are as follows:

BUZE10% A E 2 B P IR

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2020-2021

T~
2021 2020
—B--F T FTHF
Reporting segments HK$°000 HK$’000
A2 D FET FET
Customer A (note (i) Trading (supply chain)
business - 56,159
BEPR(HE) B 5 (f(HresE) %%
Customer B (note (i) Intelligent Advertising and
Railroad Media business - 131,347
BE(HE0)) BeeEE RIFRERE RS
Customer C (note (i) Intelligent Advertising and
Railroad Media business 75,268 -

BEPR(H ) B EE MR EE T

Note: Biat

)  Revenue derived from Customer A and B did not () H#E_Z-_—F=A=1+—H
contribute 10% or more to the Group’s total revenue IEFE  RERFREEFL
during the year ended 31 March 2021. KU R I A AN R B M B s

BRA10%3 A £ -

(i)  Revenue derived from Customer C did not contribute iy BE_Z-_FTF=-—H=1—H
10% or more to the Group’s total revenue during the IEFE - RERFARRET
year ended 31 March 2020. mAREEMRKEER10%

A E ©

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WMEMAK
2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Imputed interests on convertible notes A # AR =45 H#E & 51| 2

(Note 27) (Biaz27) - 2,559
Interest on lease liabilities HEEENE 164 195
Interest on other borrowings HEMEENE 955 276
1,119 3,030




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-—F=ZA=1+—HIHFE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. KRBiAIEE

Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging/ R BT B Iy NG (ST A) AT IE

(crediting): BigER
2021 2020
—E--F T _THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET

Auditors’ remuneration for audit ZEANEN & — = ERTE

services 480 480
Staff costs (including directors’ BINAN(BIEESHE)

remuneration) (note 11) (H1az11)

— salaries and other benefits —He REMBER 15,837 13,332

— contributions to defined contribution  — TEZBMLXET &It 2k

schemes 689 493

16,526 13,825

Cost of inventories sold FrEFERA 88,200 152,456
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREREITE (A

equipment (note) 2,992 2,351
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENTEHZ)

(note) 1,896 1,513
Repair and maintenance (note) s RIRE (HT22) 10,085 -
Research and development (note) e (K122 ) 9,892 11,125
Short-term lease payments REHEENK 381 436
Written down of properties held MO EL E W3

for sale - 1,947
Gross rental income from investment & YEELMNAS WAL

properties (1,129) (917)
Less: direct operating expenses arising Ji : FRELEFRSWAH

from investment properties REMEEENERE

that generated rental income KRS

during the year 240 167
Less: direct operating expenses arising & : F R AREAFR S WAL

from investment properties KREYHEEENEE

that did not generate rental ERY

income during the year 446 349

(443) (401)

Note: These items were included in the “administrative expenses”. Kt - BEEIEE BREETERFEAS IF -

HRERERLE BT -—F-—FFRH 131
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT)

10. FREHiMA<(ER)

2021 2020
—B—F —ECTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: BUEATIE -
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B2 ERTSH - 19
Deferred taxation ERER IR
Charged/(credited) during the year REEXZ L, (EE)
(note 28) (K1it28) 528 (904)
Income tax expenses/(credit) for the year ZNEEFFERFHY (3K %) 528 (885)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

The directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC

Enterprise Income Tax had been made as the Group had
no assessable profit.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2020-2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) (continued)

FTREPMELEYMBMT AR AT and BB EAA G ERLME
AR~ Fwhich principally engaged in forestry cultivation,
research and application of agricultural technologies are

entitled to tax exemption.

According to a policy promulgated by the State Tax Bureau
of the PRC and effective from 2008 onwards, Shenzhen
Zhixunpai Information Technology Company Ltd engaged
in research and development activities are entitled to claim
an additional tax deduction amounting to 75% of the
qualified research and development expenses incurred
in determining its assessable tax profits for that year.
According to a new tax incentives policy promulgated by
the State Tax Bureau of the PRC in 2018, which would be

effective to 2023.

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the loss

10. FREHIMA (ER) (&)

i P MBI A R AR M
BEEMEEEMEERARER
REEXRE  EERMHERE
A FRERBES -

$ETF—IEEE¢II%E%%£@%}5ME
HE_ZTF )\Eiixﬁlﬂ’]ﬂ(ﬁ
YERKESREBERA ié%ﬁﬂ
HNFABEE ﬁ%EE%%EUI\ﬁ%ﬁ
e LEEERNETEERV G
NMOFEEENARERTERW
75%  REFEERRBER-F
—\FEMEOF R ERBER - B
BEYHE-_T_=F -

AEEZHEHRARGEARERA

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as BRARAIE B ESEROT ¢
follows:
2021 2020
—B- - —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before tax BRALAIEE (27,448) (42,141)
Tax at domestic income tax rate RBIRFT B &R qu#ZfRIE (5,243) (8,886)
Tax effect of income not taxable for /AR 2 B 755
tax purpose (50) (99
Tax effect of expense not deductible for NI HF BT & 2~ B FE 2228
tax purpose 4,138 4,424
Super deduction of research and TR > AR RE N
development expenditure (1,855) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERFAIAETIE 2 i £ 3,538 3,636
Income tax expenses/(credit) for REFEHEAS(HER)
the year 528 (885)

HAERERDAT —B_F-—B-—F&H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2021

S
11.

TEC—F=-A=1+—HIFE
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Directors’ remuneration:
— fees
— salaries and other allowances
— retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Others employees
(excluding directors):
— salaries and other benefits
— contributions to defined
contribution schemes

1. EERFABEX

BFEHM -
e
*iﬁ%&ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ

RIREFEHEIHER

Hitvfg 8
(TBRES):
— e REMEF]
— E B FRET IR
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2021 2020
—B--f% —TZTHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TETT
1,910 1,742

22 -

24 13

1,956 1,755
13,905 11,590
665 480
14,570 12,070




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-—F=ZA=1+—HIHFE

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 1. EERABEX(8)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=H
Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant BIEEBGEM F TR BN E B
to the applicable GEM Listing Rules and Hong Kong NEEPIFEENFEAEENE
Companies Ordinance, is as follows: (N
2021 —E-—fF
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
e
RHEAM RIKBA
ok =13 TR @t

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET FET TFET

Executive directors: BITES -
Ms. Yang Wei Bt 240 - - 240
Mr. Zhang Yanajang sRA SR 600 1 12 623
Mr. Gu Zhonghai' BRI SE 360 - - 360
Mr. Zhao Xin Yan? DT SE A2 110 11 - 121
Non-executive director: FEHITES -
Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky RERZ T 240 - 12 252
Independent non-executive B FEFITE S ¢
directors;
Mr. Chung Koon Yan IR A 120 - - 120
Dr. Yang Fuyu 5 &= a8 T 120 - - 120
Ms. Zhao Yongmei Kzt 120 - - 120

1,910 22 24 1,956

HREZRARAT —B-F-—F-—FF#% 135
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ma B R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

1. BERAAX(E)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EZEFHM(E)
2020 T EF
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
e
REAM RIKEF
ik e HEIGS Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: WITESE -
Ms. Yang Wei kAt 240 - - 240
Mr. Zhang Yangjang SRA SRS A 650 - - 650
Mr. Gu Zhonghai' FARE S A 232 - - 232
Non-executive director: EMITESE -
Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky RERLZ T 260 - 13 273
Independent non-executive B FEHITE S ¢
directors:
Mr. Chung Koon Yan EEALE 120 - - 120
Dr. Yang Fuyu BEWREL 120 - - 120
Ms. Zhao Yongmei Kzt 120 - - 120
1,742 - 13 1,755
Notes: Bigt -

1 Mr. Gu Zhonghai was appointed as an executive
director on 9 August 2019.

2  Mr. Zhao Xin Yan was appointed as an executive
director on 16 October 2020.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors
has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in
both years.
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mE

BF 75 R 2 P

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

()

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2020: two) are directors of the
Company whose emoluments are set out above.
The emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three)
highest paid individuals who are non-directors are as
follows:

e ME MRS
RIRER B

Salaries and other allowances
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

The number of non-directors highest paid individuals
whose remuneration within the following band is as
follows:

Within HK$1,000,000

No bonus was paid or receivable by directors or the
five highest paid employees after considering the
Group’s operational and financial performance during
the year (2020: nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2020: nil).

At the end of the reporting period, there was no
forfeited contribution, which arose upon employees
leaving the retirement benefits scheme and which are
available to reduce the contribution payable in the
future years.

1. EERBABEX(H)
b) EEEEHFAL

AEERAERESHFATBER
REMB(ZE_FF : ME)
B AEFMER L - 8T
ZH(ZEBIEF  ZH)EBR

FALT(RERFFRTES)Z

T

2021 2020
—B-—F —ECTF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,483 2,142

48 13

1,531 2,155

1,000,000/ JTJA A

(c)

FMN T TIREZIESES
=FMALTZEEBENT

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
3 3

KERAEBRFARESL
BIissE% o MEDNESH
hEESHFATHEFEKE
A(ZZE-TF &)

FR - AEBIRAEMRNAR
Eog AT AEAER -
ARSI EMBRMNBAREE
% BENEABBHE(CS
—EF | o

RNBEHMEEER - YELE
Rz R BRI R
BRBRABAMEEMES -
WAIARNED BRFERN 2

K

HAERERDAT —B_F-—B-—F&H
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE—T-—F=-A=+—HILFE
12. DIVIDEND
No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year, nor
any dividend has been proposed by the board of directors
subsequent to the end of the reporting period (2020: nil).
13. LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

12. RE
PR AR A 2k i 2 R S R HA AR
B IRAREHREEETSNERESR
EREABRE(ZE-—TF : &) -
13. EREE

DTG A A
BTSRRI TS -

2021 2020
—E--F T _THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Loss 58
Loss for the year attributable to owners Evtqu IREAR REEEET
of the Company for the purpose of ZIS BlEA AEEFER
basic and diluted loss per share J?Eﬂéi (22,099) (31,739)
’000 000
FR Fig
(restated)
(geE%l)
Number of shares RO E
Weighted average number of ordinary it & SFAEARN LS EEMm
shares for the purpose of basic and 5 @ &M@ INE T
diluted loss per share 320,079 237,478

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 has been adjusted
for ten-to-one share consolidation of the Company which
became effective on 21 June 2021.

The calculation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as
they had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share
for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020. The basic
and diluted loss per share are the same for both years.
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e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. EAEEE
Land use Office

right premises Total

T fE AR b N3 st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FET FET
At 31 March 2020 RZZE_ZTF=H

=+—H

Carrying amount BRmEE 5,250 3,590 8,840

At 31 March 2021 R=ZBZ=—-%=A
=+—H
Carrying amount BRMEE 5,605 1,953 7,558
For the year ended BE-ZE-_—-%=H

31 March 2021 =t+t—HLHFE

Depreciation charge WEEZH (82 (1,814) (1,896)

Exchange alignment ME 5 F8 5 437 177 614

For the year ended HE-_ZT-_TF=H

31 March 2020 f+ Emirﬁ

Depreciation charge WEEHR (80) (1,433) (1,513

Exchange alignment e 3 (362) (57) (419)

2021 2020

—E=-—F —E-THF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Expense relating to short-term leases AR5 B ERB 381 436

Total cash outflow for leases HERS LB 2,319 1,935

Addition to right-of-use assets NEFRREE - 2,994

HAERERATE BB -2 —FFRH
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE-_ZE-—F=A=1+—HIEE
14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The land use rights of the Group are located in the PRC
with the remaining period of 61 years.

For both years, the Group leases various offices premises
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of one year to four years, but may have extension
and termination options as described below. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, as at 31 March 2021, lease liabilities of
HK$2,103,000 (2020: HK$3,776,000) are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of HK$7,558,000 (2020:
HK$8,840,000). The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-T-—#=A=t ALFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥1% - BRERRE

Furniture,
Bearer Leasehold fixtures and Motor
plant improvements  equipment vehicles Total
EEM B
B BENEEE LERRE "E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FATL AT AT AT
Cost: A
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEFMNA—H 10,246 59 303 174 10,782
Additions NE - 357 76 - 433
Exchange alignment & 5 R (655) 6) ©) (11) (680)
At 31 March 2020 and WZE-E5=A=1-H
at 1 April 2020 ERZE-FEMA-H 9,591 40 31 163 10,535
Additions nE - - 43 - 43
Written-off s (2,958) - - - (2,958)
Exchange alignment 5 % 803 - 12 8 823
At 31 March 2021 R-B--F=H=+-A 1,436 410 426 17 8,443
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE .
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA—H 3,823 56 218 174 4,271
Charged for the year KEEMRR 2,221 73 57 - 2,351
Exchange alignment ERTEEE: (286) (1) (7) (1) (306)
At 31 March 2020 and W_E-E5=A=1-H
at 1 April 2020 FRZEZEEMA—H 5,758 128 268 163 6,317
Charged for the year AEENR 2,816 129 47 - 2,992
Written-off s (2,958) - - (2,958)
Exchange alignment [ 5 3R 548 - 8 564
At 31 March 2021 R-B--£=H=1+-H 6,164 257 323 17 6,915
Carrying amounts: REE:
At 31 March 2021 R-E--£=A=+-H 1,272 153 103 - 1,528
At 31 March 2020 RZE-ZFE=A=1—H 3,833 282 103 - 4,218

HAERERDAT —B_F-—B-—F&H
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-—F=ZA=1+—HILHFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

16. REYHE

The Group leases out various retail stores under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically
run for an initial period of one to four years, with unilateral
rights to extend the lease beyond initial period held by
lessees only. Majority of the lease contracts contain market
review clauses in the event the lessee exercises the option
to extend.

All lease arrangements are denominated in RMB. The lease
contracts do not contain lessee’s option to purchase the
property at the end of lease term.

AEERESLEHEEBEERTEE
EEEE BARDES  MHE
—RFABB—=0F - B F&
TAAFEZENBHEENYHREEE
Ko RBHPBEEGHHBEEAEA
TEERENNBERL TSRS

3K -

Fﬁﬁ% EXHUARESE - HE
WA ARE A AR ARHI A RR
5%/\%%6’7 SEaE

HK$’000
T
At 1 April 2019 50_ - NFHA—H 59,649
Loss arising from change in fair value NHEEBELNEER (1,929)
Exchange alignment ME 5, SRR (3,789)
At 31 March 2020 and at 1 April 2020 RZZEZE i A=+—H8xk
R _TFMA—H 53,931
Gain arising from change in fair value N EZEEENW R 2,111
Exchange alignment bE W AR 4,589
At 31 March 2021 R-ZE-—H=F=+—H 60,631

The Group’s investment property’s interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purpose are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment property. The
Group’s investment property is located in the PRC and
held under medium-term lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

17. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 17. BELHEWE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2019 R-ZZE—-NFHEHA—AH 89,617
Additions NG 203
Written down WO (1,947)
Exchange alignment b 5, SRR (6,708)
At 31 March 2020 and at 1 April 2020 RZZEZZEF=A=1T—HBK
i e g = 82,165
Additions NG 159
Exchange alignment M 5, 58 EE 6,891
At 31 March 2021 R-TB-_—F=H=+—H 89,215
The properties held for sale at 31 March 2021 and 2020 RZE-Z—FRN_ZE-_ZFF=FH
are located in the PRC, and are expected to be saleable =+—HB BEEREWEMRF
within 1 year. C WIBET AR —F R E -
18. INVENTORIES 18. 7 &
2021 2020
—B-—-F —ZE-FTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Finished goods RIAY T 610 23
Inventories are expected to be recovered within one year. FEHFEB RN —FERLkED -

HAERERATE BB -2 —FFRH
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

19. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 19. £ Y EE
2021 2020
=B T -TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fair value ~NHE
At 1 April RIUA—H 38,483 45,972
Increases due to plantation ESEE =Rl 4,718 4,050
Decrease due to harvest IT%Hﬁlﬁﬁ)UZQ\ (359) (4,286)
Loss from changes in fair value NP EZEFREERAEE L
less costs to sell g (10,309) (5,784)
Exchange alignment M 54, R 8 3,335 (1,469)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 35,868 38,483
Less: non-current portion of B Y EERERBIE S
biological assets 35,623 37,344
Current portion mBNER 245 1,139

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group BHe—T—
harvested approximately of 180,000 catties (2020: 670,000 I

catties) of Chinese herbal. The directors measured the
fair value less costs to sell by income approach based on

discounted cash flow model.

The Group’s biological assets represent the growing
populus alba var. pyramidalis and chinese herbals as

AER

—F=ZA=1+—HIF
A= E U E|#£7180,000T (==
—Z4F 1 670,000/T )P EEN - BE
BIFEHIBE S RERNEAWRASE
SRR SR o

AEBHNEMEERKENIIBIS
KR EERS - AT AR

follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EFF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
Populus alba var. pyramidalis rEts 35,623 37,344
Chinese herbals FR g 245 1,139
35,868 38,483
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

19. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)
The quantity of biological assets at the end of reporting

19. £EMEE(E)
REHRNEVMEESES WM AT

period were as follows: N
Populus
Alba var. Chinese
pyramidalis herbals Total
HES R et
‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F17 7 F17
At 31 March 2021 R=ZBZ-F=A
=+—H 200 330 530
At 31 March 2020 R-ZZE_ZTF=H
=+—H 200 446 646
The Group’s biological assets were valued by independent AEENEYMEERS E%fﬁ@
professional valuers at 31 March 2021 and 2020. The MR T —FRZFT_TF=A
independent professional valuers involved in this valuation =+—HEEBE 2HEHEZELE
included a professional member of the Royal Institution %ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ@%ﬁl%%% ﬁ el R==q ]
of Chartered Surveyors (“MRICS”) and have appraisal Z([MRICS)) zEX%EE8 - i

experience in a broad range of assets such as property
assets, biological assets, mining rights and assets,
technological assets and financial assets in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

All biological assets are categorised as Level 3 in fair
value hierarchy. Details of valuation methodology used
is disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

l&%/ BRERZEEMHELR
BRMEEE  EMEE  BER
KIBE - BNEEREREE -

MEEMEERATERERT S
REZM - ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁl i
AR A B TS IRRTEESQ

HAERERATE BB -2 —FFRH
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BB R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE_T——

FZA=+—RHIFE

19. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)
The Group is exposed to a number of risks related to its
plantations as follows:

(1)

2

(3)

(4)

Regulatory and environmental risks

The Group is subject to laws and regulations in the
jurisdiction in which it operates. The Group has
established environmental policies and procedures
aimed at compliance with local environmental and
other laws. Management performs regular reviews
to identify environmental risks and to ensure that the
systems in place are adequate to manage those risks.

Supply and demand risks

The Group is exposed to risks arising from fluctuations
in the price and sales volume. Where possible the
Group manages this risk by aligning its harvest volume
to market supply and demand. Management performs
regular industry trend analysis to ensure that the
Group’s pricing structure is in line with the market
and to ensure that projected harvest volumes are
consistent with the expected demand.

Climate and other risks

The Group’s plantations are exposed to the risk of
damage from climatic changes, diseases, forest fires
and other natural forces. The Group has extensive
processes in place aimed to minimise those risks,
including regular forest health inspections and industry
pest and disease surveys.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from
changes in prices. The Group does not anticipate that
the prices of populus alba var. pyramidalis and chinese
herbals will decline significantly in the foreseeable
future. The Group reviews its outlook for chinese
herbals prices regularly in considering the need for
active price risk management.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

JE U RR K
B IFEEERE

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for credit losses

Other receivables H Ath fE W5k IB
Prepayments TER IR
Deposits Ee

Note:

() At 31 March 2021 and 2020, prepayments mainly
represented the amounts paid to suppliers.

(i) At 31 March 2020, other receivables of approximately
HK$4,057,000 represented contribution receivable from
non-controlling interests.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables,
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates
the respective revenue recognition dates and net of
allowance for credit losses:

Within 3 months =@ARN
3 months — 6 months =EAA=NEA
Over 6 months FBiE7NE A

20. FEWBRFR N H 1 FE UL TR
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECERF
notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Kzt FET FET
83,845 51,828
(3,359) (565)
80,486 51,263
(i) 9,385 22,004
(i) 67,725 82,775
884 821
158,480 156,863
Bzt -

() RZFEZ—FRZFT_FTF=H
=t+—HB BENRBEFEAINT
HERNSHE

iy MZZTE_ZF=A=+—H0 ' Efp
JEUR FRIE 494,057 00078 7T A FEUFE
ZEREREE ©

AT BEBERRZ R o - 2%
A (B W TR B BRI ) I
I EEBRREZS

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
32,223 39,947
32,515 8,247
15,748 3,069
80,486 51,263
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

S
20.

21.

22,

—E-—F=A=1+—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
The average credit period granted to customers is 6
months after an invoice has been sent out.

At 31 March 2021, trade receivables of approximately
HK$27,000,000 (2020: HK$35,073,000) is due from the
Group’s largest customer.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020 are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong

CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

HK$ BIT

United States Dollar (“USD”) E(lEmT])
Euro Dollar (“Euro”) BT ([BoT])
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AREB(TAREK])

RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are
subject to the rules and regulations of the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

At 31 March 2021, the Group had cash and bank deposits
denominated in RMB of approximately HK$9,003,000
(2020: HK$9,400,000). The remittance of these funds out
of the PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.
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2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
330 -

22, WERBITER
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
2,859 3,645
577 104
- 136
9,003 9,400
12,439 13,285
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables FERTBRX
Other payables (Note) HAth A SRIB (H77E)
Accruals fEETE R

An aging analysis of the trade payables is as follows:

Within 3 months =EANR
Over 3 months but within 1 year B=—EAE—FA
Over 1 year B —4F

The credit period on purchase of goods and services
ranged from 30 days to 365 days.

Note:
Other payables mainly include the followings:

() the amount due to ex-director of the Company and a
director of the Company’s subsidiaries of approximately of
HK$2,500,000 and HK$1,692,000 (2020: HK$2,500,000
and HK$1,692,000) respectively as at 31 March 2021 which
are repayable on demand, unsecured and interest-free; and

(i) amounts of approximately HK$7,511,000 (2020:
HK$7,291,000) and HK$137,000 (2020: HK$nil) as at 31
March 2021 represented advances from third parties and
interest payables respectively. Advances from third parties
are repayable one year, unsecured and bear interest of 12%-
20% (2020: 12%) per annum.

23. B RRREMEA KR

2021 2020

=B —-F —ZE-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
38,783 32,111
11,719 22,851
1,586 1,599
52,088 56,561

FERT BRI BRER AT A0 TS

2021 2020
—B--F C—T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
4,116 1,858
5,805 30,253
28,862 _
38,783 32,111

BEERERBOEEMN FI0E
365H o

it -

Hit B RIBEE 2 BEATRIA

M

NZE-_—F=A=+—H8 " E
NARABRFATESERARBINE
N A E FFRIE S R #2,500,000 7%
701,692,000 T ( —ZE = F4F
2,500,000 7T} 1,692,000/ 7T)
ZREALENREE BEEREE
B &

RZE-_—F=A=+—H0" %
47,511,000 ( ZE_FF
7,291,0007 7T ) X 137,000 7T (—
E-FF BE)ESRRESE
ZHZBRREMAFIE c REFE=
FZRFRAR—FAEE @ K
IR ERNEA2%-20% (ZE-F
F 1 12%)5t R °

HAERERDAT —B_F-—B-—F&H
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE_T——
24,

25.

F-A=t—HIFE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Provision of mobile advertising
media services

As at 1 April 2019, the Group had contract liabilities of
approximately HK$1,376,000.

When the Group receives deposit before providing
advertising display services, this will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount
of the deposit. The Group typically receives a deposit on
acceptance of a contract.

Substantially all the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 have been
recognised as revenue during the respective financial
reporting period as the Group will normally provide the
services to satisfy the remaining performance obligations of
the relevant contract liabilities within one year or less.

The Group classifies these contract liabilities as current
because the Group expects them to be settled in normal
operating cycle within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

AMOUNTS DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER/
DIRECTORS/RELATED COMPANIES/NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The amounts due to directors/related companies/
noncontrolling interests are non-trade nature, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. Included in
amounts due to non-controlling interests with the amounts
of approximately HK$1,130,000 (2020: HK$1,130,000)
as at 31 March 2021 related to consideration payable for
acquisition of Zhifeng Holdings Limited (“Zhifeng”).

As at 31 March 2021, the amount due to a shareholder is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. As at
31 March 2020, the amount due to a shareholder is non-
trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and not repayable
within 12 months after the report’s period.
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2021 2020
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HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEAE
2021 2020
—E—-F —EEF
Present Present
value value
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments
REHE &HKEHEE SEHE KEHE
AR2BE FRZBE NRZRE NRZERE
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET T FET

Within one year —F X 2,103 2,110 1,745 1,903
After one year but within ~ — & ERMER
two years - - 2,031 2,164
2,103 2,110 3,776 4,067
Less: total future interest & © ARFI B AL 4258
expenses (7 (291)
Present value of lease HEaERE
liabilities 2,103 3,776
Less: Amount due for B T 8 A REIER
settlement within WI/B BN ®
12 months (shown H(RREAE
under current HTHIR)
liabilities) (2,103) (1,745)
Amount due for settlement 7+ —1{& A& Z|HIN 78
after 12 months (shown EEMERE(NIER
under non-current BEEHE NIR)
liabilities) - 2,031
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES
The movements in the liability component of the Group’s
convertible notes are set out below:

At 1 April REA—A
Imputed interest (note 8) HEF B (HiE8)
Conversion of convertible notes s R AR =R
At 31 March M=A=+—H

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the convertible
notes with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$32,774,000 were converted into 410,000,000 new
shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.08
per share.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-T

At 1 April 2019

Credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss
(note 10)

Exchange alignment

At 31 March 2020 and
1 April 2020

Charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss
(note 10)

Exchange alignment

At 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2021,

deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
approximately HK$73,384,000 (2020: HK$53,635,000)
as it is not probable if there will be future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses could be
carried forward indefinitely except for the tax losses arising
in the PRC will expire in one to five years for offsetting

against future taxable profits.

——F=A=f—HILEE
28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Fair value on

28. EEBIEAE

.

investment Convertible
property notes Total
REYE AR
Z2¥E =B st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
RZZE—-NFMNA—A (19,715) (422) (20,137)
FFALREERE
(Kiz#10)
482 422 904
e 5L S 1,255 - 1,255
R-ZTZTF
“A=+—HEK
i
mA—H (17,978) - (17,978)
BirEBm Rk
(K17%10)
(528) - (528)
b 5 (979) - (979)
R-ZE=-—F
=B=+—H (19,485) - (19,485)
the Group has not recognised RZE-Z—F=A=+—H " B#R

NR AT B & 7 B R B 02 ) A 3K 6
AIEB A 2 HIAEE -
ot 25T 15 18 B 18 49 73,384,000 78

T (=—Z —FT 4 : 53,635,000/ 7T )
BRIELEHIBEE - AREEME
HigzmF
BE - AERHIBEBHE]ER G

MR AR BIE R KR

NS T

B B SRR AR IR

PR P SR B g ) 2 5 T IS 18 PR R 2R
_iﬂﬂzﬁqﬂﬁﬂ °
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29, |RA
2021 2020 2021 2020
“B--f C—T-TH B "TC°TF
Nominal value
Number of Nominal value of Number of
ordinary ordinary ordinary of ordinary
shares shares shares shares
EBER LiEk EER TR
BRHEE BmEE ZHEfE ZHEE
‘000 '000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FiKE FR FE FET
Authorised: EE
At 1 April and 31 March at REA—BAK
HK$0.01 each =A=t+-~8
SREECOET 30,000,000 30,000,000 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRARE
At 1 April RIMA—H 2,778,936 2,368,936 27,789 23,689
Subscription of shares RERND 473,780 - 4,738 -
Shares issued on conversion of FERTARERET
Convertible Notes R - 410,000 - 4,100
At 31 March R=A=1+—H 3,252,716 2,778,936 32,527 27,789
Note: On 27 April 2020, the Company entered into a Kigt - E/Q\—v—vfﬁmﬂ ++8 K

NAEEEBERA 7(Hu@§/\ﬁ
RIS © B - AR

subscription agreement with Win Bless Limited (the
“Subscriber”). Pursuant to which the Company had

GREAT W

conditional agreed to allot and issue, and the Subscriber
had conditionally agreed to subscribe for, a total of
473,780,000 subscription shares at HK$0.021 per
share (the “Share Subscription”). Difference between
the nominal value of share issued of approximately
HK$5,211,000 standing to the credited of the Share
premium. The Share Subscription was completed
on 11 May 2020. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$9,949,000 was used for general working capital and
HK$5,211,000 was transferred the share premium.

ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂtMmm%ﬁm
%&%ﬁmfAm7%owh
ﬁ%ﬂ“ b ﬁ%}\aﬁﬂﬂ#ﬂ
= ﬁ%;z#nxfﬁ(rﬂxfﬁu WE ) o
BETRMEEZENEZELY
5mmm%ﬁﬁAk@EF%
RHERREE - IR RIER =
FRHA+—BHZEKX ° ﬁfr?%’fwﬁ@
%8 #79,949,00078 7T FH1E— R &
BESN5211 ooo/%ruaﬁé)\
BB -

During the year ended 31 March 2020, several Convertible HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=+—HL
Notes holders exercised their conversion rights attached FE :F—H@HXmTJ% BB AT

to the Convertible Notes with an aggregate principal
amount of approximately HK$32,774,000 to convert
into 410,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an
adjusted conversion price of HK$0.08 per share.
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

31.

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities at
the end of reporting period (2020: nil).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

2012 Share Option Scheme

In order to enable the continuity of share option available
to be granted by the Company, an ordinary resolution had
been proposed to and passed by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 August
2012 to adopt a new share option scheme (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”) upon the termination of the share
option scheme adopted at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 2 August 2002.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme enables the Company
to grant options to selected persons to subscribe for
shares in the Company as incentives or rewards for their
contributions or potential contributions to the Group. The
Board may, at its discretion, invite (i) any director or any
employee of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
invested entity; (i) any holder of legal or beneficial title of
any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
invested entity; (iii) any business or joint venture partner,
contractor, subcontractor, agent, sub-agent of the Group
or any invested entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support or
any advisory, consultancy, professional services to any
member of the Group or any invested entity; and (v) any
supplier of goods or services, customer or distributor of
the Group or any invested entity, to take up options to
subscribe for the shares in the Company for a consideration
of HK$10 per each lot of share options granted.

30. AR

31.

REeEHEGEER  AEETEE
MEBAIKARBE(ZZT_FF : ) -

B RESTE
—E-—FEREE
BEXRQGAJEERLERE B
RZE——FNA=ZHETZ2ARQ
AIRRAFARE FMRERIR2ZWE
ERABEBRER  URKLER
NEE_EE-_FNA-_BETZ
PERAFRE FERA 2 ERERE
% EEsERETE( 22 —=
FHEAERTE]) -

R —T - FEREEIEAR
RIEER BT IHEALREA
RERD - EREREFHAKEEDL

BERNEBEEERZ RB B - &
SEARRES - (ARA -~ TRHE

BB ARSI IEETRE I ME
EREMEER ; (\ANEBEETMAKER
A AEREREERMETTMNES
ZETRERTERZEMAFEA
(iAEBE S EMEETEB 2 EME
BREEEIERNY - ABH - 98
BRIE - BIRIE (vAAEBRE
Ak B A Rl s T 1% & B IR
7T~ B B A i SR SR T
M BRI BERSE TR AL
EE: RWAEERTMREETE
ZEMBRKREzHEER BF
LT UWEBFREBREI10HE
TTZRE - BRI REAQE KD
2 BB -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid for a period of 10
years commencing on 3 August 2012. The option period
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of option.
There is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. HK$10 is payable on
acceptance of an option within 28 days from the date
of grant. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at the date of adoption of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme or the date of approval by the shareholders
in general meeting where the limit is refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
individual in any twelve month period up to and including
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue at the date of grant unless approval from Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. Options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their respective
associates in excess of 0.1% of the total number of shares
in issue or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time during the specified
option period. The exercise price shall be determined by
the directors, and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant;
(i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as

follows:

Participants Date of grant
g8t RitiAH
Employees of the Group 4 February 2016
AEEREE “Z-~¥-AMmA
Consultants 4 February 2016
B —T-R¥ZAEA

Weighted average exercise price

MEFSTEE

Exercisable
period

e

4 February 2016 to
6 January 2026
- E-ANEZE
ZEIRE-ARA

4 February 2016 to
6 January 2026
—ET- A F-AMmEZE
“EIRE-ARA

31. BRETE(E)

—E-CFBRETEE)
RARITIERE A IE < B A 28 KL HE AR
BRI ITTEEN T

No. of underlying shares comprised in option

TARREZEERGHE

Forfeited  Outstanding

Exercise At 1 April during  at 31 March

per share 2020 the year 2021

R-B=-§

A ZA=1-H

-t 522 R W RATE

BRITEE mA-H ERRY BREH A

HK$0.264 22,400,000 - 22,400,000
0.264%7C

HK$0.264 78,400,000 (78,400,000) -
026457

100,800,000 - 22,400,000

HK$0.264 - HK$0.264

0.264 87T 0.264/8 1T

HAERERATE BB -2 —FFRH
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Participants Date of grant
2EAL R BAH
Employees of the Group 4 February 2016
rEEES - N¥-AlmA
Consultants 4 February 2016
B - NEZAmA

Weighted average exercise price

IEFSITEE

Exercisable
period

14

4 February 2016 to
6January2026
= /\E HEE‘;I:
—5—/\@ H/\E'

4 February 2016 to
6 January 2026
“E-F-AMAZ

“E-F—-RiH

31. BRETEI(E)

Exercise
per share

SR{T6EE
HK$0.264

0.26477C

HK$0.264

0.264787C

Except for 78,400,000 (2020: 11,200,000) share options
were forfeited during 31 March 2021, no other share
options were granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

At the end of the reporting period, the number of shares
in respect of which may be issued upon exercise of
share options granted and remain outstanding under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme was 22,400,000 (2020:
100,800,000), representing 0.69% (2020: 3.63%) of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date.
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—FBRESEI(E)

No. of underlying shares comprised in option

st ARRE R BB

At Forfeited QOutstanding
1 April during at 31 March
2019 the year 2020
R-ZZ-%
S =A=1+-H
“E-NE S RATTR
mA—A FRRl BREHA
33,600,000 (11,200,000) 22,400,000
78,400,000 - 78,400,000
112,000,000 (11,200,000 100,800,000
HK$0.264 - HK$0.264
026487 0.264/% 7T

Br 78,400,000 ( —Z & = & F :
11,200,00017 ) lE R EE R #E =
—E—F=ZRA=+—HB#H 2K
I BE—E - —ER_E-TE
A=+ BLFEHERL -
17~ RS SHE AR AR o

RIFEMLEER - RITFERE -
S — —FEREEE RO RE R
1T 2 B AR A T A T 31T A B 1D &R
B £22,400,000 ( =T =T 4F :
100,800,000% ) * 15 A A R A% H
DTN M0.69%( — B T4 :
3.63%) o
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32.

33.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under rules and regulations of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in fund under
the control of trustees. The Group and its employees are
each required to contribute 5% of relevant payroll costs to
the MPF Scheme.

The employees employed by the PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the retirement
benefits schemes based on a certain percentage of their
payroll to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these retirement benefits schemes is
to make the required contributions under the schemes.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acquisition of Junteng International Limited
(“Junteng”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Junteng Group”)

On 18 June 2019, Green Aprx Investment Ltd, a wholly-
owned subsidiary, entered into a subscription agreement
in relating to subscribe for 51% of the issued share capital
in Junteng at a total consideration of US$51 (equivalents to
approximately HK$1,000). Junteng is an investment holding
company and the principal activities of the Junteng Group
is principally engaged in provision of magazines publication
in the PRC. The acquisition was completed on 13 August
2019. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed did not
constitute a business combination as defined in HKFRS 3
Business Combination and therefore the acquisition was
accounted for as assets acquisition.

32.

33.

RAKERGE

AR ERIE R G MERTEE AERD
ZHAMBPIRIBEEERER
B & 2 BIRREAF 8 ([ a2 5t
) BB EERARH
ZEEDHARKE  BTHERAE
B o AEE L EESHALZBBIH
TR 2 5%[ARIE S At BIHK -

XENRTENBARZEESTE
KU 28 2 B R E BRI AE 8
KB - FEMBARARFCZE
TEDHRERRBMEEIHETAE
Bz EmA o AEBERAFRINE
MEH 8l 2 E— B EDIREF EMED
PRZBHEK o

EBEH
W iE R E PR A PR 2 B ([ 3R 1) &%
HIt B8 (5 ([ BRmEE )

RZZT—HAENA+NB 25K
BARBREREER AR LRE
WiE - NABBAERES1E7T (8
E41,000870) REBEES1%E
BTN - Sl AR EER AR
mEEEEEBHEN BRI
SRR S  c WEBEEBER=-Z
—NhENAT=BxK - CHEHN
BERAAENBEBEL THEKER
A (EERBBYBREERES
REBELSH) At WEEEAR
FIVEEEUREE -
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
Acquisition of Junteng International Limited
(“Junteng”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Junteng Group”) (continued)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date
of acquisition are as follows:

Trade and other receivables JFE Uk BR 3 K ELAh FE W kT

Cash and bank deposits R& MIBITIER
Non-controlling interests FEIEMRE A

Trade and other payables JEAS BR 3R B EoAth FE 5 5B
Amount due to shareholders JEA B R KR

PrAfERFREN A TE

Fair value of net liabilities assumed

Net cash flow on acquisition of Junteng Group:

Cash consideration paid BEfRENRE
Less: cash and cash equivalent

acquired

Net cash inflow WeRAFHE

34. TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

On 30 April 2019, Yenbo Gain, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Sunshine Wonder,
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a share transfer agreement, pursuant to which the
parties agreed to enter into a intra-group transfer (the
“Transfer”) which Yenbo Gain agreed to dispose of, and
Sunshine Wonder agreed to acquire, 60% of the entire
issued share capital of Zhifeng Holdings Limited (“Zhifeng”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Zhifeng group”). Further details
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 30 April
2019. The Transfer was completed on 31 May 2019. The
Group recognized a decrease in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$1,681,000 in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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33.

34.

¥Ke6t(®)

WS ER R ER PR B PR 2 7] ([ BRAE 1)
REMBAT(GB([BREER])
(%)
RUBAHHEKBEERERT
BEMT :

HK$'000
FETT

1,612
13
247
(645)
(1,313

(86)

WiE B R BT Ay H B F AR

o T EIRE KRS FEY

HK$'000
T87T
]
(13)
(12)
BEFERRRER IR S

R-ZE—AFEWMA=+H  AQ7
ZHEZEIEZ2ENBRREE FE
KRN B E# 2 & W B A 7 Sunshine
Wonderz] 3 f% 15 & :Z 3% 0 5 1L
EHREBEETEERNEZ ([
ZE) BEFRELE  Sunshine
WonderA BB EEZERAER A
ATEE D) EREMBAR (SBE &
LEE|)B0%HEEE BHITRA -
BLZHBERARANBHRAE-Z
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35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions during the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020:

(@) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and key management
personnel during the year was as follows:

35. EXBELXRS
REAVBEREREBEHRES
S REBE-T-_—FR-_FT-F
FZA=Z+HLEE  A5EZ
EITATEREEIRS

(a) FEEBAEBZHE
RENEZERTEEBEEAES
ZEHBMmMT

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e hEMBEF] 2,508 2,461
Retirement benefit scheme RREFIFT B R

contributions 36 40

2,544 2,501

The remuneration of directors and key management
personnel is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals.

(b) Loan from related parties

Included in amounts due to related companies of
approximately HK$56,431,000 (2020: HK$52,105,000)
represents the balances with the companies in which
Mr. Huang Shih Tsai, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, has equity interests and/or directorships.
Other than the aforesaid, details of the balances with
related parties at the end of the reporting period
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EERTE2EREABZHFM
HEFEMEZESRENALZR
BEXE -

(b) REBEELSHER
AAEMNBEARRELY
56,431,000 T( T =_FF :
52,105,000/ 7T ) JH 5 EA AN 1 &
FTERREHBLERERD
BHEN/ SETESEZ2 AN
oo B EiEIN - RIREH
MEE HEBER 2 ERFS
;R ERE BTG RE M 5E25 ©
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36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. KEHERE
At the end of reporting period, the Group had contracted RIMERAR  NEBEHEPEIAM
with the tenants for the following future minimum lease BT RREEEE EUR
receivables:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT AT
The Group as lessor AEBEREEA
— Within one year ——FR 569 757
- In the second to fifth years inclusive —F _—FZF R F
(BIREEEMSE) 414 746
983 1,503
Property rental income earned during the year ended 31 HE2_ZT-_—4%=ZHA=+—H
March 2021 was approximately of HK$1,129,000 (2020: IEFEERERMOYE fﬂ & LBZ NS
HK$917,000). All of the Group’s investment properties are 11290008 T(Z T T F :
held for rental purposes. At 31 March 2021, the property 917,000/87C) - AEBRFIERE
expected to generate rental yields of 1.9% (2020: 1.7%) on METFRHERDESEN - RZZ
an ongoing basis. ——F=A=+—8" %ﬁﬂ@%%
Zt?ziﬂ 9% (ZZE=FF 1 1.7%) K
—v—g ﬁﬂi ©
37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 37. EXRER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AEBEEBRESE K VAR N 2 B
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern ETERGeBRELES RS
while maximising the return to shareholders through the ZEVAREREREAREE - [
optimisation of the cash and cash equivalents and equity AR REALOR - KREBRZE
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged BESRER AR AEMA o

from prior year.

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of AREEBZRERAGELREREER
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by Mmoo LR TIAGRE BB R
equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial FrFaERERTH o

position.

The capital structure of the Group consists of long-term AREBZEAEEBERBEE(E
borrowings (comprising amount due to a shareholder and PREREMN—ERERIELEES
lease liabilities) and equity attributable to owners of the B)ARARBHEE AELER(E
Company (comprising share capital and reserves). B IERR AN ) ©
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37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. EXREE(E)
The directors review the capital structure on a regular EETHEBMENGEE - (FAERH
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the 2y BEEEE AR K EE
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of MEANBBAZRR - RIREPELE
capital. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period BEAZEARBRLERAT :

was as follows:

2021 2020

=B —-F T THF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Debt () B1&() 71,517 73,190

Less: Cash and bank deposits o B MBITER (12,439) (13,285)

Net debt FARE (59,078) 59,905
Equity attributable to owners of the ZIN/NETE ¥ =Nl

Company i 75,421 79,217

Debt-to-equity ratio EEHERIER 78% 76%

() Debt comprises lease liabilities and amount due to a () BEBEHEAERENKRENRE

shareholder as defined in Notes 26 and 25 respectively. (UM 5F26 R 25FT D BISEE ) ©
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

(b)

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial risk management objectives and

policies

38. €@ I A
(a) €T EER
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FHET
EREE
BHENAGTE e REE 103,194 87,373
BAFERT AR
CREE 330 -
cA =R
BEENAGTE 2 SRAaE (198,233) (190,594)
(b) MERREERZERBER
AEBZFESHTI AR EX

The Group’s major financial instruments are disclosed

in above. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and other
price risk; the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

38. WM T A(E)
(b) BBEEREREBRRBER(E)

(i) Market risk management () TEREEEE
Currency risk B

The Group is exposed to currency risk which
gives rise to cash and bank deposits that
are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which the transaction relates.

Certain cash and bank deposits are denominated
in USD and RMB. The conversion of RMB
into other currencies is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the government of the PRC.
The Group is not exposed to foreign exchange
risk in respect of exchange fluctuation of HKD
against RMB as the Group does not have material
balance in RMB.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is not exposed to material foreign
exchange risk exposure in respect of HK$
against USD as long as this currency is pegged.
Therefore, USD are excluded from the analysis
below.

No sensitivity analysis is provided in respect of
exchange fluctuation of HK$ against RMB as the
Group does not have material balance in RMB.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates arises primarily from bank
deposits with a floating interest rate. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its interest rate risk.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did
not have variable rate interest bearing liabilities.
The Group has no exposure to interest rate risk.

AEBEAZEERR - I
EENINE(BIERBR S 2
B AEEBZNEEEN
SN EEFHEZIRE MR
TER o

TR RBRITERIAE
TRAREE AR
RBSHEMERARTH
B8 5 8 A B0 SN A AR
AN AR B - 7 5 B 3f 4
BEMEBETAARKER
KB IMNER R - T E R
AEBITEEAAREG
8 o

BRI T
REERHE  AEEY
PEZBERBILHEETH
BEARIMERRR - Fitt - &
TR AIA R AT

HRAEEYEEAAR
hatr WA BRBITH
AR 2 XK ENIRH B
RE DT

ETl
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
(ii) Credit risk management

FZA=+—RHIFE

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

At 31 March 2021, the Group has certain
concentration of credit risk as 70% (2020: 74%)
of the trade receivables of the Group were due
from top five customers (2020: top five customer).
The directors considered the credit risk is limited
since the Group only trade with customer with an
appropriate credit history and good reputation.
The directors monitored the financial background
and creditability of those debtors on an ongoing
basis.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises
from trade and other receivables (excluding
prepayments) and bank balances.

Trade receivables

The Group has applied the simplified approach in
HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL, which is calculated using a provision matrix
or assessed individually. The provision matrix
was based on historical credit loss experience
with reference to the past default experience of
the debtors, general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate and an
assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast conditions at the reporting date.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2020-2021

38. €M T A(HE)
(b) MBEEREEEERBEEKGE)

(i) EEmREEE

AEBEREYF I REETT
f&uﬁﬁﬁlﬁmﬁﬁ
BRzEREERRITIR
5%9%%#%%%%@
AERRTREEELZ
ARmE(E

%:5_—¢ A=+—

AEBEETEES
¢HA FARAEE
T0%(ZZE=FF : 74%)
FEWESRARBRAKRERP
TECTE ﬁk%ﬁ)
HE -EERAEEFER
ﬁ@*%lﬁﬁl@ﬁﬁ
ABEEELHMRITRE
MEFES  BFEHET
EREEBANYEE S
1*%5% o

AEENEERRETZR
B & R RN L A R
H(NERENKE) KR
TT#EER ©

/E%?‘gl%w\
REB S HKABEBTBER
EREANEIFH M AR
EXHEHEERENE
BiEE ZBREERRE
FErEGTE N ERTM o &
HEEEERNELEED
ﬁﬁ%'ﬁ%%&ﬁAﬂ
AWELER BBAL
& FRTIET %M A% 45 7 AR
MARERERE A MTE
BIAR SR FEAS o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-—F=ZA=1+—HIHFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 38. ERITHE (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BKEREEEERBEK(E)

policies (continued)

(i) Credit risk management (continued) (i) EERBEEE(E)
Trade receivables (continued) JEW R (48)
At 31 March 2021, the ECL of debtors with gross RZE-—F=H=+—
carrying amount of approximately HK$83,845,000 H EBEAREBAZED
(2020: HK$51,589,000) was assessed by 83,845,000 8 L (=& =
using provision matrix which was shown in the T F : 51,589,000 /& 7T )
following table for the year ended 31 March MNEREEEBRERT X
2021. The provision matrix with expected loss iR z2—_F-—F=A
rates up to 1.7% applied on different groupings =t+—HIEFENEEE
for the year ended 31 March 2020. Debtors that BETHG - HEZZE
are considered as credit-impaired with gross —TEF=ZA=+—HIE&E
carrying amount of approximately HK$nil (2020: B HBHEEXRSE
HK$239,000) were assessed individually. 1.7% #4848 B FE 3 A N D

E 48Rl B 18 Bl &F 1 45
AEERERLRMEEY
BEBT(ZE_ZF :
239,000/ 7T ) FEIS A °

Gross carrying amount BREAEE
2021
—E--F

Average Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHERE BEAE BRRE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not yet past due IR A 8 0.1% 27,046 27
1 to 3 months past due w12 3(E A 1.4% 5,278 73
3 to 6 months past due B3 ZE6(E A 4.3% 39,282 1,701
Over 6 months past due B B6(E A 11.0% 12,000 1,319
83,606 3,120
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S ——
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
(i) Credit risk management (continued)

FZA=+—RHIFE

Deposits and other receivables and bank balances

Deposits and other receivables were measured as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. If a significant increase in
credit risk of a receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, impairment is measured as lifetime
expected credit loss. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
deposits and other receivables as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. During
the year ended 31 March 2021, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$6,838,000 (2020:
HK$1,002,000) was recognised in respect of
other receivables.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T - F=A=+—HILFE
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
(ii) Credit risk management (continued)
The following table shows the movement in
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables under the simplified approach:

38. WM T A(E)
(b) BBEEREREBRRBER(E)

(i) EERBREE(E)
TRETREB(CT AR
P& Ui B 8 B R ) 22 3 TR
EEEREE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

2HES 2HEH

FEBE FEEE
(TEREERE) (EERE) #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAET
At 1 April 2019 W-Z—hEMA—A 129 - 129
Impairment losses recognised, net 2R REBREE 197 239 436

At 31 March 2020 and RZBE-EF=A=1+—H

at 1 April 2020 ER-E-ZFMA—H 326 239 565
Impairment losses recognised, net B MR EEEFE 2,794 - 2,794
At 31 March 2021 R-ZBZ-£=ZA=+—-H 3,120 239 3,359

(i) ZEELEEEE
EERESRRE B
BEEBERe RS

(iii) Liquidity risk management
In management of the liquidity risk, the
management manages the Group’s funds
conservatively by maintaining a comfortable level EMHERFREEKFE - XA
of cash and cash equivalents in order to meet BEERFZEEEARAEEER
continuous operation needs. Various banking T UANENBELEFRR
facilities and credit lines will be considered to fund &= ARAIBERZIER
any emergency liquidity requirements. The Group TREREERE - W&
currently relies on funds generated from business NERMEZRSHESH
operations, issue of new shares and convertible 2o REERKFUEBLKSE
notes as well as advances from directors/related B BT KA SR
companies/non-controlling interests as principal ERELEESNUEKRE
source to maintain its liquidity. BEE HENE FEER
R 2B RERETEES
FORABREERENE S o

AEBEEMEREER
RERHNBRE MRS FE
YKFE - URAEEZEE
REESLAERERE
RENTE o

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents considered adequate by the
directors to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-—F=ZA=1+—HILHFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (continued)
The following tables details the Group’s
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial

38. €@TA(E)
(b) BIERAREEEERBE(E)
(1)

(iii) TBELEEE
T%Eitﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%i% & %
Kt & ZKEI%ME/U

liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. %E BENEHBER -2
Undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities are MBEZAWRBESRE
based on the earliest date on which the Group BASEEAEANA LK

PHEHHE . —_ T - —F
2 _ZF5TIIIRE

can be required to pay. The analysis is prepared
on the same basis for both 2021 and 2020.

MR EZEHEST -
Weighted
average  On demand Total Total
effective  or less than Oneto undiscounted  carrying
interestrate ~ oneyear  fiveyears  cashflows amount
METS BEX AfBEE
ERRE  3-%#n -ZRF  REEE  AKEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT
2021 “B--F
Non-derivative financial liabiliies ~ F¥{T4£4REE
Trade and other payables ERERRAMENZE - 52,088 - 52,088 52,088
Lease liabilties HEafk 5.46% 2,103 - 2,103 2,103
Amounts due to directors EESHE - 6,784 - 6784 6,784
Amounts due to related companies EfEELR] - 58,171 - 58,171 58,171
Amounts due to non-controling interests (S 3E%5 %ﬁ%’ - 9,673 - 9,673 9,673
Amount due to a shareholder Bl —%kEzE - 69,414 - 69,414 69,414
Total @3t 198,233 - 198,233 198,233
2020 “Z-%
Non-derivative financial liabiliies ~ ¥{T4£4REE
Trade and other payables ERERREMENZE - 56,561 - 56,561 56,561
Lease libilties HEek 5.46% 1,903 2,164 4,067 3776
Amounts due to directors EEEEN - 6,576 - 6,576 6,576
Amounts due to related companies ERBENRZE - 52,105 - 52,105 52,106
Amounts due to non-controling interests (3 3E12# %E% - 2,162 - 2,162 2,162
Amount due to a shareholder Ef—%RkEE - - 69,414 69,414 69,414
Total @3t 119,307 71,578 190,885 190,594

(c) HtEERER
K’i BB IAR R FE AR
@7 T B W UK RE 7 1R B A
ZHEAMEBRER - HRAEBR

(c) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL.
For equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in the

Stock Exchange, the directors manage this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. The management has monitored the price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the
need arise.

No sensitivity analysis is presented in respect of the
fair value change of the equity securities measured at
FVTPL as the amount is considered immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-—F=ZA=1+—HIHFE

39. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

39.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements were

approximate of their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s

FVTPL,

investment property and biological assets

measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as

defined in HKFRS 13:

Fair Value Measurement

At 31 March 2021 A—E_—-F=A=+—H

Financial assets at FVTPL £ AP A AIBZRH
ERMEE

— Listed equity securities — & ARE A

Investment property: KEYEE -

- Located in the PRC — IR

Biological assets EYEE

At 31 March 2020 RZZEZFF=A=1+—H

Financial assets at FVTPL 12 A F{Est Al8z5H)
TREE

— Listed equity securites  — IR AN 5

Investment property: "EYE

— Located in the PRC — (L pA R

Biological assets EEE

AF{E B
ARFIEERR  REAMBHRE
THAZLCHEEREMABRBIR
EEEAENHERS

DNFEER

TR RN ERERERFEESE
.:Jrijl/\*ﬁﬁi?/’%ﬁﬁ“#ﬁiﬁﬁﬂ
18P E < =B A FEFRER

ZK%IE/A?@%)@E&T& BB

YN EMEERATE

AT E

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& EZR E= #WEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$P000 HK$S 000
FET FET FET FET
330 - - 330
- - 60,631 60,631
- - 35,868 35,868
330 - 96,499 96,829
- - 53,931 53,931
- - 38,483 38,483
- - 92,414 92,414

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there was a transfer
of fair value measurements into level 3 from level 2 for

the Group’s investment property as a result of change
in valuation methodology which involved significant
unobservable inputs. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
date of the events or change in circumstance that caused
the transfer.

I ﬁﬁl&éf%iéﬁ FHE?_@-;
HE_RBAF=4 REAAIR
BERTABRBENHETELR
g - $EIZLBI“5EEA%|@Z$7
BOEHRBEREBDE BRI AF
TE%%&ZF‘%E’\J%E% °
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BE_Z-_—F=R=1+—HILFE
39. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Fair value measurement of FVTPL

The fair value of the Group’s FVTPL at the end of the
reporting period was determined by the quoted bid prices
in an active market.

Fair value measurement of investment property

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at the end
of the reporting period has been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out by Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal
Ltd (2020: Asset Appraisal Limited), an independent
qualified professional valuer who are not connected with
the Group and have among their staff members of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the valuation of property in the relevant locations.

At the end of each reporting period, the management will (i)
verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;
(i) assess property valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report; and (i) holds discussion
with the independent valuer.

39. A EFTEE)

BAFE ARENERAENH D
FiEHHE

R B A T EA A2 A
ER B Bk AT EREHEDS
FREEEEE -

REVMENDFEE

AREBERENENHRERROAF
BSRIEIE G EREF E M ER5
SHAMFEERAR(ZE-F
FRHERENEERBERAR)

ETHEEMS D - ZAREAE
EWERE  HARESEEBHERM

SemET  HOMAGHEBUE
R ERGESR -

wx%&%ﬁ%: BB ES)Z
VhEREZAEEEH A

%'@ﬁ&iZﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ
YIS EEE ¢ i) 2B L ERD
;—JLHFHEI °

Level 3 hierarchy F=ERK
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DEEFE=FOANTETEEHER -
within Level 3:
Investment
property
REWME
HK$’000
FET
Carrying amount FREE
At 1 April 2019 R_E—NFMEA—H -
Transfer from Level 2 into Level 3 (note) Q F R A E = (HaF) 59,649
Loss arising on change in fair value N EZESELNER (1,929)
Exchange alignment bEE 54 3B (3,789)
At 31 March 2020 %:;:?E‘H_+ H
and at 1 April 2020 R -—E-FTFA—H 53,931
Gain arising on change in fair value N EZEEENRE 2,111
Exchange alignment BEE 54, A B 4,589
At 31 March 2021 N-—E-_—F=H=+—H 60,631

Note: The transfer from Level 2 to Level 3 is due to a lack of
observable market data, resulting from a decrease in
market activity for the investment properties.
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HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

39. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

39. AYEFTEE)

Fair value measurement of investment property (continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties

REMENDFEEGE)

DERAFEBRE=R2IREY
XMEMRBZEETERTIESR

classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: oW BENT
Valuation Significant Key unobservable
Description technique unobservable inputs inputs
ik fEE R BEATABRGARE TETABRRBAHE
Investment properties Income capitalization Market yields 5% (2020: 5%)
located in the PRC approach

RN B RE MR WAERE [k LG 5%(—T_ZF : 5%)
Monthly Rental Income RMB34/m? to
RMB97/m?
HESIA BYARAREMTE
BYFRARKEITT
(2020: RMB25/m?
To RMB1O8/m2)

(7 < — 7 qz
Y ARARKE2TLE
FYHARARKE108TT)
Direct comparison Market price (price per RMB6,015/m? to
method square meter) RMB18,279/m?
BEHEE mIHER FEARAREG015TE
(B FHARANER) BYFRARKE18,2797T
(2020: RMB5,900/m? To
RMB18 OOO/mQ)

(— <= — 7 qz
FFRARES900TE
FFHRARE18,0007T)

IRPE R EME 2 GETRE

The valuation of investment property located in the PRC
were based on income capitalisation approach which
capitalized the rental income of the property and taking
into account the reversionary potential of the property after
expiry of the current lease. Measurement of the fair value
is positively correlated to the market rental and price per
square metre and inversely correlated to market yields.

Fair value measurement of biological assets
Biological assets were stated at fair value less costs to
sell at the end of the reporting period. The fair value was
determined by the independent qualified professional
valuer, Graval Consulting Limited by using income
approach with reference to market determined prices,
cultivation areas, species, growing conditions, cost incurred
and to be incurred and expected yield of crops.

There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in prior year. In estimating the fair value of the
biological assets, the highest and best use of the biological
assets is their current use.

AR AL R % - BV IS Y
SRS WAL EBEEWEE BB
AT (B
BT S 2 5 F K B A E

MEmME 2 ERE
b - B IS R AR L o

EMEENDTEE

EMBEERNBREHEEERRAYF
BERHE XA - RFEIIH
ﬁiﬁﬁ%i%%ﬁ%ﬁ H R
AI2EMISEE  BEE
BmiE s AREBER  EELERS
EEXCKAARTER RIEMESE

RARA

ERRAEMETE -

RiBEFERBAGEEL &
B o WEFHEMEEZ AFEE
EMEERBRAERE &S M

EME -
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HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

39. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)
Fair value measurement of biological assets (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
The following significant unobservable inputs were used to
measure the Group’s biological assets plantation:

Description

R

Populus alba var.
pyramidalis Bunge
L=

Cistanche deserticola

ARE

Lycium barbarum

At

Hippophae rhamnoides

Ziziphus jujuba
RS

The fair value measurements are negatively correlated
to the price and required rate of return of each group of

biological assets.

The reconciliation of the movement between opening and
closing balances of biological assets categorised valuations
under fair value hierarchy of Level 3, measured at fair value
using a valuation technique with significant unobservable
inputs is set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial = A

statements.

174

Valuation technique

EESA

Income approach

WAR

Income approach

WAR

Income approach

WAR

Income approach

WAR

Income approach

WAR

Significant unobservable inputs

EATTERGARE

Estimated selling price (per cubic
metre)

fhEtEE (LK)

Required rate of return
PR [l

Estimated maturity year

fEEt AR

Estimated selling price (per catty)
st EE(Em)

Required rate of return

PR Bl

Estimated selling price (per catty)
st EE(Em)

Required rate of return

PR [

Estimated selling price(per catty)
st EE(Em)

Required rate of return

PR B

Estimated selling price (per catty)
st EE(Em)

Required rate of return

PR B
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39. AFEFEE)
EYEENATEFE(E)
BHEE=AR RN FETEHNEF
AN E R AT B R o) A BUE A G
EAEENEYEERER

Key unobservable inputs
as at 31 March

FEFTUERGAHE
R=B=+-—-8H
2021 2020
B —ZT-THF
RMB650 RMB600
AR¥6507T ARE6007T
21.89% 22.92%
2023 2021
—g-=fF —E-—%F
RMB6 RMB8
AR¥er ARKST
21.89% 22.92%
N.A. RMB10
TEAR AREI0T
N.A. 22.92%
FiEHA
N.A. RMB6
TEAR AR®6T
N.A. 22.92%
FiEA
N.A. RMB4
TER AR®4T
N.A. 22.92%
FiEA

B LSRR NP EFERSELY
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HE-_ZE-—F=A=1—HIFE
40. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2021 were
as follows, the class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Sunshine Wonder Limited
Sunshine Wonder Limited

Zhifeng Holdings Limited
FEEREARAA

Thousand Investments Limited

RBERERRAR

AE R RBRA R
AR ER R AR D A

|

|

HEEMTELRER AR

]j

ER R RAR AR

e
NERRGRELEREFRAR

Yenbo Gain Limited
RENERAR

Hong Kong Silversage Holdings Limited
ERRIERERAA]

BURANEmORI) ARG
BUANEMmORI) AR

R AR R ITBR AR

FET AR ARLE)

Place/country of
Incorporation/
operation
MR,/
T/ BX

British Virgin Islands
ABRIAES

British Virgin Islands
ABRAAES

Hong Kong
&R

The PRC
RE

The PRC
RE

The PRC

e
British Virgin Islands
RERAAES

Hong Kong
&R

The PRC
RE

The PRC

FE

40. (i D RIFFAE R

RZE-_—F=A=Z+—"H &R
RIZMBARIDMT K

Br BITEREHE

S - PTESAR DR RIS A E A

Proportion of nominal

Issued and fully value of issued capital/
paid/registered registered capital
capital held by the Company
BRTRARE RARBEZBRORE/
R&/EMER &AL EER

Directly  Indirectly

B 554

US$100 100% -
100E7T
US$100 - 60%
100E7T
HK$1 - 60%
187
HK$1,000,000 - 60%
1,000,000 7T
RMB10,000,000 - 60%
AR%10,000,0007
RMB10,000,000 - 60%
AR%10,000,0007
US$22 - 81.82%
2ET
HK$10,000 - 81.82%
10,0007T
RMB5,535,590 - 81.82%
AE#5,535,5007C
RMB1,838,500 - 81.82%

ANE#1,838,5007

Principal activities

IERE

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RELER

Research and develop on
forestry products

MEMEER

Forestry cuttivation, promotion
and application of
agricultural technologies,
and information consultation

WERSE - RERMEERE
AARIER S

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REER

Cultivation and distribution
of agricuttural and forestry
products

BERDBRMEER

HAERERDAT —B_F-—B-—F&H
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HE

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Field Source Capital Resources Limited

SEABRAT

Forever Uprise Creation Limited
KAERBRAR

Grant Shine Limited
BIBRAT]

Great World Investments Limited
Great World Investments Limited

Prime Profit International Group
Holdings Limited
ANERERERRR

ANERERARAR
ANERERBRAR

BB RERREFARAA]
BB RERFEXARAA

ENPREREERARARS
ENAREREERARARC
LUAPEEREXBRAF

ol

LUAPEEREXBRAF

Shenzhen Zhixunpai Information
Technology Co Ltd.*
AIERREEHRERAT

TEC—F=-A=1+—HIFE
40. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place/country of

Incorporation/

operation capital
MR,/

TeEnwd /BX

Hong Kong HK$1

A 18T

Hong Kong HK$1

A 18T

Hong Kong

A 1,000,000/
Hong Kong HK$1

A 1T

Hong Kong HK$1

A 18T

The PRC

H 1,000,000 7T

The PRC

il AR#10,100,0007T
The PRC

ki AR 5,000,007
The PRC

G AR H25,000,0007C
The PRC

ki AR#10,100,000
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Issued and fully
paid/registered

ERTRAE
RA/ERER

HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,000

RMB10,100,000

RMBS5,000,000

RMB25,000,000

RMB10,100,000

40. B D RIFAE R (5E)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
KAABEZBRORE/
A& ARG EEL S

Directly  Indirectly

B 583
- 51%

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

51%

- 26.01%

- 100%

- 50.5%

Principal activities

IERH

Trading (supply chain) business

EH(HER) %5

Trading (supply chain) business

EH(HER) %5

Trading (supply chain) business

EH(fHER) %5

Investment holding
REER

General trading business
—REHER

Trading (supply chain) business

EH(HER) %5

General trading business

—REHEH

Provision of magazines printing
and advertising services
R HEIR R E SRS

Property investment and
development, operating and
managing residential and
commercial properties

DEBERER FekER
EEPEEL)ES

Provision of intelligent
advertising media services

R RS RERE
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40. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place/country of  Issued and fully
Incorporation/ paid/registered

Name of subsidiary operation capital
SRR/ BRIRMRE
WEAREE Beny /BX RA/SmER
INBAREEREER AR The PRC RMB1,000,000
BNBRRESRRBR AT e AK¥1,000,0007T
ENBOBERRARAA The PRC RMBS5,000,000
ENBOBERRARAA i AR #5,000,0007

B3

limited liability company (solely invested by Taiwan, Hong
Kong or Macao legal person) established in the PRC.

limited liability company (solely invested by foreign owned
enterprise) established in the PRC.

a limited liability company (solely invested by legal person)
established in the PRC.

@  Although the Group’s effective ownership interests in these
companies were equal to or less than 50%, the management
consider that the Group control these companies through
more than 50% voting power in the board or shareholders’
meeting of these companies and therefore these companies
are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group.

The PRC subsidiaries adopted 31 December as financial
year end date for local statutory reporting purposes. For
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements,
accounts of those PRC subsidiaries for each of the 12
months ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 have been used
after making adjustments, as appropriate, for compliance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

40. B D RIFAE R (E)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital/
registered capital
held by the Company  Principal activities
KAAREZERTRE/
SMERFEEELS FEER
Directly  Indirectly
B R

- 30.3%  Provision of intelligent
advertising media services
REEEESRERS

- 26.01%  Trading (supply chain) business
B ({55

KPR ARAR(HEE - HEH
BFVEANBE)

RABKRZNBRAR(HINEBERE
&) -

RABERZNERRR(HEABE) o

e

I 3 R

BEAEERZTARNMBEEERS
N ADHE0% - BERERSAEEFE R
ZERREEZGABRRAGHEIBI0%IX
SRESZERR - Hit - ZFRFA
RIVEARERE AR -

~~
5]

MEHEZFTRBMS @ PEMBA
AT+ -_A=+—BAHBHEF
BEZHEER - ZZH BB RAE
EE - FR_ZE-_FTF=RA
=t BLtEE+-@EAZEREDE
BAESLTERRM 2T RAELE
B URREGESIMIEHRE

HAERERDAT —B_F-—B-—F&H
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None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period or at any
time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particular of
excessive length.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests. The summarised financial information below

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=1+—HItFE

40. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

40. B A RFAER ()
%W%@ﬁmﬁiﬁiiEWEﬁ
R BT R (E B ETSE

ERIBH AN EEHRB L
SRB/EBYEAREXENAE
C FEELE D B

2 Al - BEEWR
TA%ﬁéh

ﬁm%o

ANCIRIPEE- i

T%@mﬁﬁl%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$kﬁ

mIFEENEBA

AIERETS  ToIE

BEMBERREERYHEINE

represents amounts before intergroup elimination: 2H
Proportion of
Place of incorporation ownership interests and
and principal place voting rights held by Loss allocate to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary of business non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
A FERBRFHEN
HEAREH REEERUE FRERGRREEES  AREFEREENEE it FERER
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
8- "% CRC-F CTCTF CRC-F CTO%R
Shenzhen Zhixunpai Group (note () the PRC 49% 49% 10,454 (2,068) 14,060 3,601
MIERREE W) hEl
Yenbo Gain Group the PRC 18.18% 18.18% (4.427) (1,600) (1,682) 45,144
RENEE hEl
Zhifeng Group the PRC 40% 40% (6,072) (3,942) 15,983 (5,624)
it £3 hEl
Indlividual immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controling interests (5,603) (3,567 9,895 783
FRIERER 2 AR EANEAT
38,256 43,904

Notes:

()  Excluding the non-controlling interests of its subsidiaries.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2020-2021
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40. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Set out below are the summarised financial information

before intragroup eliminations for subsidiaries that have
noncontrolling interests that are material to the Group.

Summarised financial information
At 31 March 2021

Current assets MENEE

Current liabilities MENBE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Non-current liabilities JEREBEE

Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AfE)FE

At 31 March 2020

Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities MEAE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Net assets BEFE

40. B D RIFAE R (E)
TXHEHIESHB AR (AL AEE
MmEBENIEERER) REER
HHAIMN I TIEERIBEE -

MBERBE
R-EB-—F=A=+—H
Shenzhen
Zhixunpai Yenbo Zhifeng
Group Gain Group Group
Y& FRIK BEF =8
&= £ &=
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FETT FAETT
103,432 60,220 13,134
(74,747) (69,529) (15,676)
1,980 59 42,500
(1,972) - -
28,693 (9,250) 39,958

RZE_ZTF=AF=+—H

Shenzhen
Zhixunpai Yenbo Zhifeng
Group  Gain Group Group
RINE IR BEF ot
L] 3] 5B
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
65,599 74,469 10,616
(568,360) (59,429) (1,897)
2,703 59 46,427
(2,584) - -
7,358 15,099 55,146

HAERERATE BB -2 —FFRH
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HE_T——

Summarised financial information

At 31 March 2021

Revenue

Expenses

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Profit/(loss) and other comprehensive
loss for the year

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Net cash generated from investing
activities

Net cash used in financing activities

At 31 March 2020

Revenue

Expenses

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Loss and other comprehensive
loss for the year

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2020-2021

Yras
I
REREMN,(B])
Hip2EBA/ (B1#E)

REREE KA
2T (ER)

e (R /s
Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁg
REEBHEHR TR

BEXBHMAR S FR

Wk
X
REFER
Hiv 2 mER

AEREEK
Hit2EER

REXBTSH S F8R
REXBMIASFR
BEXBAARSFR

40. B A RFAER ()
B ERME
N-EBE-_—F=A=+—H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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40. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Shenzhen
Zhixunpai Yenbo Zhifeng
Group  Gain Group Group
RIYNE AR EEF =g
&8 £H L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FAET
424,962 - -
(404,186) (26,524) (15,240)
20,776 (26,524) (15,240)
559 2,175 52
21,335 (24,349) (15,188)
(1,350) 767 123
744 - -
(137) - -
RZZE_TF=A=+—H
Shenzhen
Zhixunpai Yenbo Zhifeng
Group Gain Group Group
AYIE IR REF s
3 £E - 3
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET &L
293,975 70,099 577
(297,528) (138,096) (10,431)
(3,553) (67,997) (9,854)
(682) (5,537) (623)
(4,235) (73,534) (10,477)
6,405 1,149 73
(357) (25) -
(501) - -
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HE-_T - F=A=+—HILFE

41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 41.
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

MEXBFELEREIHER

TRALAEEREXHMELR
ENEY BRASKIFHREE
B MEXKHMELRER/HEAS
MEEEHIARKRASREHERA
SEGARERERRBREEZTN

RenENERE -

Amounts  Amounts
Amounts dueto duetonon-  Amount
Other Lease Convertible dueto related controling  duetoa
payables liabilities notes  directors companies interests shareholder Total
Rt iRk B EABE EMEER  EE-%
EffZE HESE ZE  EERE DERE BRRE RRRE &t
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
AT AT &1 AT AT AT T T
At1 Aprl 2019 RZE-NEMA-H - 2006 30215 6576 55673 2008 69414 166062
Non-cash changes E3ek b
- Finance costs recogrised (1ot § -BRRRERA M) 216 1% 2559 - - - - 3030
—Conversion of convertible notes -BATAREE - - R - - - - @
- New lease entered = LWL - 29% - - - - - 2904
- Exchange alignment ~ER (169) - - - (3329 - - (3498
Cash flows ReiE
- Inflow{outflow) from financing activiies —BHEER 2N/ (L) 7,184 (1,499) - - (239) 64 - 5510
At31 March 2020 and at 1 Aprl 2020 NZZ-EE=F=1-H})
R-E-FFMA-A 7,291 3,776 - 6,576 52,105 2,162 69414 141,34
Non-cash changes $Re88
- Finance costs recognised (ote §) -BRTRERRTiHS) 955 164 - - - - - 1,119
- Exchange alignment -[EH BT 509 - 101 - 4% %2 - 5
Cash flows Béhe
- Outflow from financing activties -BAER RN (1,197) (1,938) - 208 1,705 7,269 - 6,047
At 31 March 2021 R-B--£=fA=t+-H 7,648 2,103 - 6,784 58,171 9,673 69414 153,793

HAERERDAT —B_F-—B-—F&H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-—F=ZA=1+—HILHFE
42. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

The Group entered into the following major non-cash

investing activities and financing activities which is not
reflected in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

(@ Capital contribution from non-controlling interests
of amount approximately HK$4,057,000 remains
unsettled and was included in the trade and other
receivables as at 31 March 2020.

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
entered into new lease agreements for the use of office
premises for four years. On the lease commencement,
the Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities with amount approximately of HK$2,994,000
and HK$2,994,000 respectively.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2020-2021

42, TEHBRERH
AEBETN TN EEHRRESKEE
BRFEEES  BEANGAES
RERIIR

(@)

MIETEREZTIELEY
4,057,000/ 8 TR ALE - AR
—E-TF=ZA=+—HitA
JFEE K2 B R % L A R SR IR ©

BT -_EF=AHA=+—H
IFFEE AEBERFERBRRIE
Fral 3 A& B Y F & 37 12 & 1
ZoNRNHERRKRE  AEE
BREAREELNEEAE
% %8 9 Bl #92,994,000 7% 7T &
2,994,000/ 7T °
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

43. AR A ZMBRR R R EEE
(a) ARDFZEBARRE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT

Non-current assets FREEE
Right-of-use assets EREEE 126 1,169
Property, plant and equipment Y - BRE KR E 41 37
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZRE 13 33
Amounts due from subsidiaries FELLBY B AR ZRIE 81,378 90,246
81,558 91,485

Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayment & R FHIB 530 553
Cash and bank deposits R MIRTTIER 321 539
851 1,092
Current liabilities REEE

Other payables E e 5RIE (1,604) (838)
Amount due to subsidiaries FEIST KB A RFRIA (16,428) (16,432)
Lease liabilities HEaE (132) (1,061)
Amount due to a shareholder e — B IR RIR (33,208) -
Amount due to directors fERTE B8 (6,782) (6,574)
(58,154) (24,905)
Net current liabilities REBEEEE (57,303) (23,813)

Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Amount due to a shareholder JE—Z AR R I8 - (33,208)
Lease liabilities HEaE - (131)
- (33,339)

EREZRARAT —B-F-—F-—FF#% 183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-—F=ZA=1+—HILHFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

(continued)

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Share capital
Reserves

Equity

BERE
BRAS K f#
[EEN

G

Rz

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
June 2021 and are signed on behalf by:

Ng Mui King, Joky
Director

Zhang Yanqiang

Director

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2020-2021

(#8)

43. AR B 2 BRA KRR FHEEE

(a) ARBZHBARREKGE)

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHETT
24,255 34,333
32,527 27,789
(8,272) 6,544
24,255 34,333

LEMBRREEFEN T
FRAZTANH TZE&&%?'JEU

WHATALTRKREE
REH
EF
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BHE—T-—F=-A=+—HILEFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
(b) Reserve of the Company

43. ARB 2 BRA KRR FHEEE

(#8)

(b) A2 T

Share  Convertible
Share option notes equity Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
TRREE
htaE EBRERE RRRE ZithE a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET T T T
As at 1 April 2019 RZE-NENA-A 273910 11,513 13,454 (230,788) 68,089
Loss and total comprehensive loss for - FREER R 2 EE BEE
the year - - - (90,219) (90,219)
Conversion of convertible notes SRR E 42128 - (13.454) - 28,674
Forfeited of share options R E - (1,151) - 1,151 -
As at 31 March 2020 and RZEFF=A=1-H
at 1 Apr 2020 FRAZF-TEMA-H 316,038 10,362 - (319,856) 6,544
Loss and total comprehensive FNERREEERLES
loss for the year - - - (20,027) (20,027)
Subscription of shares RERH 5,211 - - - 5,211
Forfaited of share options R RE - (8,059) - 8,059 -
As at 31 March 2021 W-B--%£=f=+-H 321,249 2,303 - (331,824) (8,272)

(c) Nature and purpose of the reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium account of the Company is
distributable to the owners of Company under the
Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands subject to the provisions of the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association and
provided that the Company will be in a position
to payoff its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed.

Share options reserves

The share option reserves represent the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted by the Company.

Convertible notes equity reserve

The convertible notes equity reserve represents
the value of the equity component of unexercised
convertible notes issued by the Company with
related deferred tax recognised.

(c) REEERBER

(M)

(ii)

(iii)

BB
RIERASEFREQRE(ZF
—ZF&F) XEAR
GEE R EmN DS SRR S
MZRBRT - ANREIA A
g BRAANRAES
AER DR - HEARRRA
REREZZ D KRS B H
% MEEEARETER
BB & -

BREHE

I R fe AR AR
Z 1R ARATIE B I B Bk
EEr#B 2 ¥ E -

R E SRR R

AR REESHEEEA
NABEEHITEREAITER
BRRBE S 2B
8 - BREERIACHER °

HAERERATE BB -2 —FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-—F=ZA=1+—HILHFE

44. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

U)

On 7 April 2021, the Company entered into a
conditional placing agreement to place up to
50,000,000 placing shares to not fewer than six
placees who are independent third parties (the
“Placing”). Further details are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 7 April 2021. The
Placing was completed on 12 May 2021.

On 5 May 2021, the board of directors of the Company
proposed to implement the share consolidation on
the basis that every ten issued and unissued existing
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company be consolidated into one consolidated share
of HK$0.1 each (the “Share Consolidation”). Further
details are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 5 May 2021. The Share Consolidation was
approved by shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 17 June 2021.

45. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 June
2021.
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AEI M~ BIRHEEwE
MAVAANEBBIE=2
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BREkRh(REEE]) - #
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U

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE T - —F=A=+—HUIFE

The summarised consolidated results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted the
audited financial statements of the Group, are set out below:

AEEBRBEREMBFE LA
B BENMNAGEHME(REEASEEE
Apv s e ATl N

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1-HLFE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--§ —T-TF —T-NEF ZT-N\F ZTtHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue Wz 505,709 441,778 230,039 53,205 55,122
Loss before tax B RIE1E (27,448) 42,141) (22,842) (27,584) (19,100
Income tax credit/(expenses) F5FE R,/ (FX) (528) 885 392 433 627
Loss for the year from BB ERE
continuing operations KEEEIE (27,976) (41,256) (22,450) (27,151) (18,479
Profit/(loss) for the year from — ZNEE[F 4% | FIR & 2 7%
discontinued operation BE A, (E518) - - 5,304 (7,847 -
Loss for the year AEEEE (27,976) (41,256) (17,146) (34,998) (18,479)
Attributable to: PATFEL,
Owners of the Company NAREEE A (22,099) (31,739) (16,783) (38,756) (17,822)
Non-controlling interests FEPER i e (5,877) (9,517 (363) 3,758 (657)
(27,976) (41,256) (17,1406) (34,998) (18,479)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t-HLFE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--% C—T-TF T-HnF ZT-N\F ZT+F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FIET FIET BT BT
Total assets BEE 366,659 357,808 381,228 381,031 335,177
Total liabilities wag (252,982)  (234,687)  (245578)  (222,575)  (193,464)
Net assets BEZE 113,677 123,121 135,650 158,456 141,713
Non-controlling interests IS 38,256 43,904 52,942 47,750 10,914

HAERERDAT —B_F-—B-—F&H
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MAJOR PROPERTIES

LY E S

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-—F=ZA=1+—HILHFE

Investment property

Location

i BE

Commercial units on
Level 1 to 3 and

41 carparking spaces on
Basement, Venice Building,
No. 130 Renmin South
Road, Zhongxincheng
District, Leshan City,
Sichuan Province,

The PRC

1 [

ey

241

I @

AR H1305%

L\ EEMKE
12318

[EE XAV

H T AEFBAL

Properties held for sale

Location

i B

Residential units on

Level 5 to 21, Venice
Building, No. 130 Renmin
South Road, Zhongxincheng
District, Leshan City,
Sichuan Province,

The PRC

[

m)IE

2 m

ARk &

AR mHE1305%
LR KE
SIEZE2VBEEEN

Intended use

BERR

Commercial use

[EEIb5S

Intended use

BERR

Commercial use

[SE 335}

REWE
Category of Gross
lease term floor area
BOER IR MEE
(sq.m.)
(Fr5K)
Medium term lease 7,176.30
FRERFE 4V
BFEHEME
Category of Gross
lease term floor area
HOER HEEMmME
(sg.m.)
(FIK)
Medium term lease 19,958.06

T4
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